
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

THE 21
ST

 DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2015 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook County, 

Illinois will hold a Regular Meeting on the 21
st
 day of September, 2015 at 6:30 p.m., for the Closed Session meeting in 

Room 252 and at 7:30 p.m. for the Open Session in the Library Technology Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 

Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois. 
 

 

AGENDA 

 

Room 252 (Closed Session – 6:30 p.m.) 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present      Absent     Present      Absent 

Scott Wallace  ______      ______  Melinda Kelly  ______      ______ 

Suzanne Nelson      _             ______  Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 

Danielle Boros  ______      ______  Stacey Van Metre ______      ______ 

Donna Keller  ______      ______ 

 

II. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 

MATTERS, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION, PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, AND SEMI-ANNUAL REVIEW OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES  
 

Library Technology Center (Open Session – 7:30 p.m.) 
 

III. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present     Absent     Present    Absent 

Scott Wallace  ______      ______  Melinda Kelly  ______      ______ 

Suzanne Nelson          _        ______  Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 

Danielle Boros  ______      ______  Stacey Van Metre ______      ______ 

Donna Keller  ______      ______ 

 

IV. FINANCIAL 
 

A. Public Hearing for Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 

B. Discussion of and Potential Adoption of Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment) 
 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS  
 

A. Freedom of Information Act Requests – There were two requests for enrollment and financial records since 

August 17, 2015. 

B. Report from the Superintendent 

➢ Update on Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act 

➢ Calendar of Reoccurring Board of Education Agenda Items 

➢ School Reference Contact Guide 

➢ Meet the New Administrative Leadership Team 

C. Report from the Chief School Business Officer 

➢ Presentation of FY16 Final Budget 

➢ Recommendation for Investment Services 

➢ Authorization for Administration to Prepare Fiscal Year 2017 Budget 

➢ Authorization for Bill Reviewer to Approve Payment of Accounts Payable for October 2015 

➢ Update on Property Tax Freeze 



D. Report from the Principal  

➢ Update on Student Enrollment for 2015-2016 

➢ Update on Master Schedule for 2015-2016 

➢ Update on Enrichment Programs for 2015-2016 

➢ Presentation of Recent Student Freshman Data 

E. Report from the Director of Student Services  

➢ Update on Student Enrollment and Services for 2015-2016 

➢ Report on Gifted Program for 2015-2016 

➢ Discussion of Non-Consensual Withdrawal of District 109 from NSSED 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the August 17, 2015, Regular Meeting and Closed Session  

B. Approval of Investment Report for August 2015 

C. Approval of Accounts Payable for August 18, 2015 to September 21, 2015  

D. Approval of Monthly Financials for August 2015 

E. Approval of Annual Application for Recognition of Schools 

F. Authorization to Publish Fiscal Year 2015 Employee Salary and Benefits Report 

G. Authorization for Bill Reviewer to Approve Payment of Accounts Payable for October 2015 

H. Authorization for the Administration to Prepare Fiscal Year 2017 Budget 

I. Acceptance of Resignation from Mr. Robert Bialk for 2015-2016 School Year  (Closed Session) 

J. Acceptance of Resignation from Mrs. Shea Almendarez for 2015-2016 School Year  (Closed Session) 

K. Acceptance of Request for Retirement (Closed Session) 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Review Proposed Strategic Plan Objectives and Action Items for the 2015-2016 School Year 

B. Potential Action to Approve the Non-Consensual Withdrawal of District 109 from NSSED 

C. Board Committee Reports including Comments and Questions 

 

IX. NEW BUSINESS  
  

A. Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve 2015-2016 School Year Date for Annual Faculty and 

Staff Recognition Breakfast 

B. Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve of the Release of Closed Session Minutes (Closed 

Session) 

C. Potential Action to Approve PMA Financial Network for Investment Services 

D. Approval to Hire 1.0FTE Spanish Teacher, Ms. Treasure Panishian (Closed Session) 

E. Approval to increase Instructional Facilitator, Ms. Megan Panje-Wilson from 0.7 FTE to 1.0 FTE 

(Closed Session) 

F. Approval to Hire Technology Facilitator, Mrs. Enza Fox (Closed Session) 

G. Approval to Hire Instructional Assistant, Mrs. Debra Kruse  (Closed Session)  

H. Discussion of Communication Initiatives 

➢ Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve 2015-2016 Community Forums 

➢ Discussion of and Endorsement of Website Redesign Initiative 

➢ Discussion of and Vote on District Visual Identity Initiative  

 
 

X. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment) 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Dated the 18
th 

day of September, 2015. 



        

Chike Erokwu 

Secretary, Board of Education 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 

 



                       Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-
872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls

Accounting Basis:

X Cash
Accrual

Date of Amended Budget:

District Name:
District RCDT No:

,  County of 

County of ,

21 day of ,     20 15

.

15

*
(1) A certified copy of this document must be filed with the county clerk within 30 days of adoption as required 

by Section 18-50 of the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/18-50).  
(2) Districts are required to submit the adopted/amended budget electronically to ISBE within 30 days of adoption or by October 30,

whichever comes first.  Budgets are submitted to: https://sec1.isbe.net/attachmgr/default.aspx  The electronic version does 
not require member signatures.

ISBE 50-36 SB2016 Updated 5/13/15

Based on the 23 Illinois Administrative Code-Part 100 and inconformity with Section 17-1 of the School Code. 

MEMBERS VOTING YEA: MEMBERS VOTING NAY:

(MM/DD/YY)

September

July 1, 2015

Kenilworth School District 38

Cook

June 30, 2016

Kenilworth School District 38

If your FY15 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY16 budget is balanced please state the measures 
you took to have your budget become balanced.  (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26)

June 30, 2016

September

July 1, 2015

21st

ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT BUDGET FORM *

School Business Services Division

Cook

Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit 
reduction plan is not required at this 
time. 

Kenilworth School District 38
05-016-038-002

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016

Budget of  

State of Illinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning and ending   

            WHEREAS the Board of Education of 
School District No. 

  State of Illinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a budget, and the Secretary 
of this Board has made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty days prior to final action thereon; 

          AND WHEREAS a public hearing was held as to such budget on the  

notice of said hearing was given at least thirty days prior thereto as required by law, and all other legal requirements have been complied with; 
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the Board of Education of said district as follows: 
          Section 1:  That the fiscal year of this school district be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be  

beginning 

          Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be and the 
same is hereby adopted as the budget of this school district for said fiscal year. 

ADOPTION OF BUDGET   

          The budget shall be approved and signed below by members of the School Board.    Adopted this      
Adopted this  

and ending 

  day of  by a roll call vote of  Yeas, and  Nays, to wit: ,  20 



                       Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-
872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls

,

.

, 

,

If your FY15 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY16 budget is balanced please state the measures 
you took to have your budget become balanced.  (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26)

Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit 
reduction plan is not required at this 
time. 

          Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be and the 



Page 2 BUDGET SUMMARY Page 2

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55

66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222
2323
2424
2525
2626
2727
2828
2929
3030
3131

3232

3333
3434
3535
3636
3737
3838
3939
4040
4141
4242
4343
4444
4545
4646

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II JJ KK LL
Begin entering data on EstRev 5-10 and EstExp 11-17 tabs. (10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description
Acct 

#
  Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 
Safety

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE July 1, 2015 1 7,478,181 3,367,683 952,517 190,331 313,259 2,999,547 422,746
RECEIPTS/REVENUES
LOCAL SOURCES 1000 9,846,590 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000 172,482 0
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                                 
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT

2000
0 0 0 0

STATE SOURCES 3000 239,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 105,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Receipts/Revenues 8 10,191,090 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000 172,482 0

Receipts/Revenues for "On Behalf" Payments 2 3998 1,500,000
Total Receipts/Revenues 11,691,090 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000 172,482 0

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES
INSTRUCTION 1000 6,404,541 155,860
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000 3,296,487 4,372,142 24,738 98,383 0 89,628 0
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000 0 0 0 0
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS 4000 227,523 0 0 0 0 0 0
DEBT SERVICES 5000 0 0 1,021,562 0 0 0 0
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 9 9,928,551 4,372,142 1,021,562 24,738 254,243 0 89,628 0

Disbursements/Expenditures for "On Behalf" Payments 2 4180 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Disbursements/Expenditures 11,428,551 4,372,142 1,021,562 24,738 254,243 0 89,628 0
Excess of Direct Receipts/Revenues Over (Under) Direct 
Disbursements/Expenditures 262,539 -2,747,210 34,507 -12,423 22,629 0 85,000 82,854 0

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)
PERMANENT TRANSFER FROM VARIOUS FUNDS

Abolishment the Working Cash Fund 16 7110

Abatement of the Working Cash Fund 16 7110
Transfer of Working Cash Fund Interest 7120
Transfer Among Funds 7130
Transfer of Interest 7140
Transfer from Capital Projects Fund to O&M Fund 7150 0
Transfer of Excess Fire Prev & Safety Tax & Interest 3                              

Proceeds to O&M Fund

7160
0

Transfer of Excess Accumulated Fire Prev & Safety Bond and Int 3a Proceeds to 
Debt Service Fund                             

7170
0

SALE OF BONDS (7200)

Principal on Bonds Sold 4 7210
Premium on Bonds Sold 7220
Accrued Interest on Bonds Sold 7230

Sale or Compensation for Fixed Assets 5 7300
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 7400 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 7500 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 7600 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 7700 0
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 7800 0
ISBE Loan Proceeds 7900
Other Sources Not Classified Elsewhere 7990

Total Other Sources of Funds 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



Page 3 BUDGET SUMMARY Page 3

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II JJ KK LL
Begin entering data on EstRev 5-10 and EstExp 11-17 tabs. (10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description
Acct 

#
  Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 
Safety

4747
4949
5050
5151
5252
5353
5454

5555

5656
5757
5858
5959
6060
6161
6262
6363
6464
6565
6666
6767
6868
6969
7070
7171
7272
7373
7474
7575
7676
7777
7878
7979
8080
8181

8282
8383
8484

8585
8686
8787
8888
8989
9090
9191
9292
9393
9494
9595

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)
TRANSFER TO VARIOUS OTHER FUNDS (8100)

Abolishment or Abatement of the Working Cash Fund 16 8110 0
Transfer of Working Cash Fund Interest 8120 0
Transfer Among Funds 8130

Transfer of Interest 6 8140
Transfer from Capital Projects Fund to O&M Fund 8150

Transfer of Excess Fire Prev & Safety Tax & Interest 3                            Proceeds 
to O&M Fund

8160

Transfer of Excess Accumulated Fire Prev & Safety Bond 3a                           and 
Int Proceeds to Debt Service Fund                             

8170

Taxes Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8410
Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8420
Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8430
Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8440
Taxes Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8510
Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8520
Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8530
Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8540
Taxes Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8610
Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8620
Other Revenues Pledged  to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8630
Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8640
Taxes Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8710
Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8720
Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8730
Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8740
Taxes Transferred to Pay for Capital Projects 8810
Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8820
Other Revenues Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8830
Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8840
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on ISBE Loans 8910
Other Uses Not Classified Elsewhere 8990

Total Other Uses of Funds 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Other Sources/Uses of Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30, 2016 7,740,720 620,473 987,024 177,908 335,888 0 3,084,547 505,600 0

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES (by Major Object)
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description Acct 
#

Educational Operations & 
Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 
Retirement/ 

Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 
Safety

Total By Object

Object Name
Salaries 100 7,081,363 90,845 0 0 0 0 7,172,208
Employee Benefits 200 1,181,936 26,881 0 254,243 0 0 0 1,463,060
Purchased Services 300 1,128,034 693,402 0 24,738 0 89,628 0 1,935,802
Supplies & Materials 400 454,516 187,568 0 0 0 0 642,084
Capital Outlay 500 61,098 3,373,446 0 0 0 0 3,434,544
Other Objects 600 21,604 0 1,021,562 0 0 0 0 0 1,043,166
Non-Capitalized Equipment 700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Termination Benefits 800 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 9,928,551 4,372,142 1,021,562 24,738 254,243 0 89,628 0 15,690,864



Page 4 SUMMARY OF CASH TRANSACTIONS Page 4

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919

2020
2121

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II JJ
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80)

Description
  Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE ON HAND July 1, 2015 7 7,478,181 3,367,683 952,517 190,331 313,259 2,999,547 422,746
10,191,090 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000 172,482

OTHER RECEIPTS
Interfund Loans Payable (Loans from Other Funds) 411
Interfund Loans Receivable (Repayment of Loans) 141
Notes and Warrants Payable 433

Other Current Assets 199
Total Other Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10,191,090 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000 172,482
Total Amount Available 17,669,271 4,992,615 2,008,586 202,646 590,131 0 3,084,547 595,228

9,928,551 4,372,142 1,021,562 24,738 254,243 0 0 89,628
OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Interfund Loans Receivable (Loans to Other Funds) 10 141
Interfund Loans Payable (Repayment of Loans) 411
Notes and Warrants Payable 433

Other Current Liabilities 499
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9,928,551 4,372,142 1,021,562 24,738 254,243 0 0 89,628
7,740,720 620,473 987,024 177,908 335,888 0 3,084,547 505,600

Acct 
#

Total Direct Receipts & Other Sources 8

ENDING CASH BALANCE ON HAND June 30, 2016 7

Total Direct Receipts, Other Sources, & Other Receipts

Total Direct Disbursements & Other Uses 9

Total Other Disbursements

Total Direct Disbursements, Other Uses, & Other Disbursements



Page 5 SUMMARY OF CASH TRANSACTIONS Page 5

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919

2020
2121

KK
(90)

Fire Prevention & 
Safety

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0



Page 5 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 5

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121
2222
2323
2424
2525
2626
2727
2828
2929
3030
3131
3232
3333
3434
3535
3636
3737
3838
3939
4040
4141
4242
4343
4444
4545
4646
4747
4848
4949

5050
5151
5252
5353
5454

5555
5656
5757

5858

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM LOCAL SOURCES
AD VALOREM TAXES LEVIED BY LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY

Designated Purposes Levies  11 - 9,335,790 1,498,202 1,055,869 12,270 217,797
Leasing Purposes Levy 12 1130
Special Education Purposes Levy 1140
FICA and Medicare Only Levies 1150
Area Vocational Construction Purposes Levy 1160
Summer School Purposes Levy 1170
Other Tax Levies (Describe & Itemize) 1190

Total Ad Valorem Taxes Levied by District 9,335,790 1,498,202 1,055,869 12,270 217,797 0 0
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Mobile Home Privilege Tax 1210
Payments from Local Housing Authority 1220
Corporate Personal Property Replacement Taxes  13 1230 59,000
Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes (Describe & Itemize) 1290

Total Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0 0 0 0 59,000 0 0
TUITION

Regular Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1311 176,000
Regular Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1312
Regular Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1313 95,000
Regular Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1314
Summer School Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1321
Summer School Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1322
Summer School Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1323
Summer School Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1324
CTE Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1331
CTE Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1332
CTE Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1333
CTE Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1334
Special Education Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1341
Special Education Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1342
Special Education Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1343
Special Education Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1344
Adult Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1351
Adult Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1352
Adult Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1353
Adult Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1354

Total Tuition 271,000
TRANSPORTATION FEES

Regular Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1411
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1412
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1413
Regular Transportation Fees from Co-curricular Activities (In State) 1415
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1416
Summer School Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1421
Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1422
Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1423
Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Sources                                           
(Out of State)

1424

CTE Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1431
CTE Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1432
CTE Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1433
CTE Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1434
Special Education Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents                     (In 
State)

1441

Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1442
Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1443
Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Sources                                  
(Out of State)

1444



Page 6 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 6

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

5959
6060
6161
6262
6363
6464
6565
6666
6767
6868
6969
7070
7171
7272
7373
7474
7575
7676
7777
7878
7979
8080
8181
8282
8383
8484
8585
8686
8787
8888
8989
9090
9191
9292
9393
9494
9595
9696
9797
9898
9999
100100
101101
102102
103103
104104
105105
106106
107107
108108
109109

Adult Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1451
Adult Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1452
Adult Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1453
Adult Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1454

Total Transportation Fees 0
EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS

Interest on Investments 1510 2,300 750 200 45 75 85,000
Gain or Loss on Sale of Investments 1520

Total Earnings on Investments 2,300 750 200 45 75 0 85,000
FOOD SERVICE

Sales to Pupils - Lunch 1611
Sales to Pupils - Breakfast 1612
Sales to Pupils - A la Carte 1613
Sales to Pupils - Other (Describe & Itemize) 1614 49,000
Sales to Adults 1620
Other Food Service (Describe & Itemize) 1690

Total Food Service 49,000
DISTRICT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY INCOME

Admissions - Athletic 1711
Admissions - Other 1719
Fees 1720
Book Store Sales 1730
Other District/School Activity Revenue (Describe & Itemize) 1790 48,000

Total District/School Activity Income 48,000 0
TEXTBOOK Income

Rentals - Regular Textbooks 1811
Rentals - Summer School Textbooks 1812
Rentals - Adult/Continuing Education Textbooks 1813
Rentals - Other (Describe) 1819
Sales - Regular Textbooks 1821
Sales - Summer School Textbooks 1822
Sales - Adult/Continuing Education Textbooks 1823
Sales - Other (Describe & Itemize) 1829
Other (Describe & Itemize) 1890

Total Textbooks 0
OTHER REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES

Rentals 1910 980
Contributions and Donations from Private Sources 1920 58,500 125,000
Impact Fees from Municipal or County Governments 1930
Services Provided Other Districts 1940
Refund of Prior Years' Expenditures 1950
Payments of Surplus Moneys from TIF Districts 1960
Drivers' Education Fees 1970
Proceeds from Vendors' Contracts 1980
School Facility Occupation Tax Proceeds 1983
Payment from Other Districts 1991 55,000
Sale of Vocational Projects 1992
Other Local Fees (Describe & Itemize) 1993
Other Local Revenues (Describe & Itemize) 1999 27,000

Total Other Revenue from Local Sources 140,500 125,980 0 0 0 0 0
Total Receipts/Revenues from Local Sources 1000 9,846,590 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000



Page 7 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 7

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

110110
111111
112112
113113

114114
115115
116116
117117
118118
119119

120120
121121
122122
123123
124124
125125
126126
127127
128128
129129
130130
131131
132132
133133
134134
135135
136136
137137
138138
139139
140140
141141
142142
143143
144144
145145
146146
147147
148148
149149
150150
151151
152152
153153
154154
155155
156156
157157
158158
159159
160160
161161
162162

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                          
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT

Flow-Through Revenue from State Sources 2100
Flow-Through Revenue from Federal Sources 2200
Other Flow-Through Revenue (Describe & Itemize) 2300

Total Flow-Through Receipts/Revenues From                                                         
One District to Another District 2000 0 0 0 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID

General State Aid (Section 18-8.05) 3001 155,000
General State Aid Hold Harmless/Supplemental 3002
Reorganization Incentives (Accounts 3005-3021) 3005
Other Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid From State Sources                                    
(Describe & Itemize)

3099

Total Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid 155,000 0 0 0 0 0
RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID
SPECIAL EDUCATION

Special Education - Private Facility Tuition 3100
Special Education - Funding for Children Requiring Sp Ed Services 3105 28,000
Special Education - Personnel 3110 55,000
Special Education - Orphanage - Individual 3120
Special Education - Orphanage - Summer Individual 3130
Special Education - Summer School 3145
Special Education - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3199

Total Special Education 83,000 0 0
CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION (CTE)

CTE - Technical Education - Tech Prep 3200
CTE - Secondary Program Improvement (CTEI) 3220
CTE - WECEP 3225
CTE - Agriculture Education 3235
CTE - Instructor Practicum 3240
CTE - Student Organizations 3270
CTE - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3299

Total Career and Technical Education 0 0 0
BILINGUAL EDUCATION

Bilingual Education - Downstate - TPI and TBE 3305
Bilingual Education - Downstate - Transitional Bilingual Education 3310

Total Bilingual Education 0 0
State Free Lunch & Breakfast 3360
School Breakfast Initiative 3365
Driver Education 3370
Adult Education (from ICCB) 3410
Adult Education - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3499

TRANSPORTATION
Transportation - Regular and Vocational 3500
Transportation - Special Education 3510
Transportation - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3599

Total Transportation 0 0 0 0
Learning Improvement - Change Grants 3610
Scientific Literacy 3660
Truant Alternative/Optional Education 3695
Early Childhood - Block Grant 3705
Reading Improvement Block Grant 3715
Reading Improvement Block Grant - Reading Recovery 3720
Continued Reading Improvement Block Grant 3725
Continued Reading Improvement Block Grant (2% Set Aside) 3726



Page 8 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 8

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

163163
164164
165165
166166
167167
168168
169169
170170
171171
172172
173173
174174

175175
176176

177177
178178

179179
180180
181181
182182

183183

184184

185185
186186
187187
188188
189189
190190
191191
192192
193193
194194
195195
196196
197197
198198
199199
200200
201201
202202
203203
204204
205205
206206
207207
208208
209209
210210
211211

Chicago General Education Block Grant 3766
Chicago Educational Services Block Grant 3767
School Safety & Educational Improvement Block Grant 3775
Technology - Technology for Success 3780
State Charter Schools 3815
Extended Learning Opportunities - Summer Bridges 3825
Infrastructure Improvements - Planning/Construction 3920
School Infrastructure - Maintenance Projects 3925
Other Restricted Revenue from State Sources (Describe & Itemize) 3999 1,500

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid 84,500 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Receipts/Revenues from State Sources 3000 239,500 0 0 0 0 0 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

Federal Impact Aid 4001
Other Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from the Federal Govt. 
(Describe & Itemize)

4009

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Head Start 4045
Construction (Impact Aid) 4050
MAGNET 4060
Other Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from Federal Govt. (Describe & 
Itemize)

4090

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly                                        
from Federal Govt. 0 0 0 0 0

TITLE VI
Title VI - Innovation and Flexibility Formula 4100
Title VI - SEA Projects 4105
Title VI - Rural Education Initiative (REI) 4107
Title VI - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4199

Total Title VI 0 0 0 0
FOOD SERVICE

Breakfast Start-Up Expansion 4200
National School Lunch Program 4210
Special Milk Program 4215
School Breakfast Program 4220
Summer Food Service Admin/Program 4225
Child and Adult Care Food Program 4226
Fresh Fruit and Vegetables 4240
Food Service - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4299

Total Food Service 0 0
TITLE I

Title I - Low Income 4300 43,000
Title I - Low Income - Neglected, Private 4305
Title I - Comprehensive School Reform 4332
Title I - Reading First 4334
Title I - Even Start 4335
Title I - Reading First SEA Funds 4337
Title I - Migrant Education 4340
Title I - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4399

Total Title I 43,000 0 0 0

UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED DIRECTLY                                        
FROM FEDERAL GOVT.

Total Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from Fed Govt

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED DIRECTLY FROM FEDERAL GOVT

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED FROM FEDERAL                                     
GOVT. THRU THE STATE



Page 9 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 9

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

212212
213213
214214
215215
216216
217217
218218
219219
220220
221221
222222
223223
224224
225225
226226
227227
228228
229229
230230
231231
232232
233233
234234
235235
236236
237237
238238
239239
240240
241241
242242
243243
244244
245245
246246
247247
248248
249249
250250
251251
252252
253253
254254
255255
256256
257257
258258
259259
260260
261261
262262
263263
264264
265265
266266
267267
268268
269269

TITLE IV
Title IV - Safe & Drug Free Schools - Formula 4400
Title IV - 21st Century Comm Learning Centers 4421
Title IV - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4499

Total Title IV 0 0 0 0
FEDERAL - SPECIAL EDUCATION

Federal Special Education - Preschool Flow-Through 4600
Federal Special Education - Preschool Discretionary 4605
Federal Special Education - IDEA Flow Through 4620 55,000
Federal Special Education - IDEA Room & Board 4625
Federal Special Education - IDEA Discretionary 4630
Federal Special Education - IDEA - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4699

Total Federal Special Education 55,000 0 0 0
CTE - PERKINS

CTE - Perkins-Title IIIE Tech Prep 4770
CTE - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4799

Total CTE - Perkins 0 0 0
Federal - Adult Education 4810
ARRA - General State Aid - Education Stabilization 4850
ARRA - Title I - Low Income 4851
ARRA - Title I - Neglected, Private 4852
ARRA - Title I - Delinquent, Private 4853
ARRA - Title I - School Improvement (Part A) 4854
ARRA - Title I - School Improvement (Section 1003g) 4855
ARRA - IDEA - Part B - Preschool 4856
ARRA - IDEA - Part B - Flow-Through 4857
ARRA - Title IID - Technology - Formula 4860
ARRA - Title IID - Technology - Competitive 4861
ARRA - McKinney - Vento Homeless Education 4862
ARRA - Child Nutrition Equipment Assistance 4863
Impact Aid Formula Grants 4864
Impact Aid Competitive Grants 4865
Qualified Zone Academy Bond Tax Credits 4866
Qualified School Construction Bond Credits 4867
Build America Bond Tax Credits 4868
Build America Bond Interest Reimbursement 4869
ARRA - General State Aid - Other Government Services Stabilization 4870
Other ARRA Funds - II 4871
Other ARRA Funds - III 4872
Other ARRA Funds - IV 4873
Other ARRA Funds - V 4874
ARRA - Early Childhood 4875
Other ARRA Funds - VII 4876
Other ARRA Funds - VIII 4877
Other ARRA Funds - IX 4878
Other ARRA Funds - X 4879
Other ARRA Funds - Ed Job Fund Program 4880

Total Stimulus Programs 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Race to the Top Program 4901

Race to the Top - Preschool Expansion Grant 4902
Advanced Placement Fee/International Baccalaureate 4904
Title III - Immigrant Education Program (IEP) 4905
Title III - Language Inst Program - Limited English (LIPLEP) 4909
Learn & Serve America 4910
McKinney Education for Homeless Children 4920
Title II - Eisenhower - Professional Development Formula 4930
Title II - Teacher Quality 4932 7,000
Federal Charter Schools 4960



Page 10 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 10

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70)

Description
Acct      

#
Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ 
Social Security

Capital Projects Working Cash

270270
271271

272272

273273
274274
275275

Medicaid Matching Funds - Administrative Outreach 4991
Medicaid Matching Funds - Fee-For-Service Program 4992
Other Restricted Grants Received from Federal Government through State 
(Describe & Itemize) 4999

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received from Federal                                           
Govt. Thru the State 105,000 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 105,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL DIRECT RECEIPTS/REVENUES 10,191,090 1,624,932 1,056,069 12,315 276,872 0 85,000



Page 11 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 11

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121
2222
2323
2424
2525
2626
2727
2828
2929
3030
3131
3232
3333
3434
3535
3636
3737
3838
3939
4040
4141
4242
4343
4444
4545
4646
4747
4848
4949

5050
5151
5252
5353
5454

5555
5656
5757

5858

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

172,397

172,397 0

0 0



Page 12 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 12

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

5959
6060
6161
6262
6363
6464
6565
6666
6767
6868
6969
7070
7171
7272
7373
7474
7575
7676
7777
7878
7979
8080
8181
8282
8383
8484
8585
8686
8787
8888
8989
9090
9191
9292
9393
9494
9595
9696
9797
9898
9999
100100
101101
102102
103103
104104
105105
106106
107107
108108
109109

85

85 0

0 0
172,482 0



Page 13 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 13

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

110110
111111
112112
113113

114114
115115
116116
117117
118118
119119

120120
121121
122122
123123
124124
125125
126126
127127
128128
129129
130130
131131
132132
133133
134134
135135
136136
137137
138138
139139
140140
141141
142142
143143
144144
145145
146146
147147
148148
149149
150150
151151
152152
153153
154154
155155
156156
157157
158158
159159
160160
161161
162162

0 0



Page 14 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 14

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

163163
164164
165165
166166
167167
168168
169169
170170
171171
172172
173173
174174

175175
176176

177177
178178

179179
180180
181181
182182

183183

184184

185185
186186
187187
188188
189189
190190
191191
192192
193193
194194
195195
196196
197197
198198
199199
200200
201201
202202
203203
204204
205205
206206
207207
208208
209209
210210
211211

0 0
0 0

0 0

0



Page 15 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 15

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

212212
213213
214214
215215
216216
217217
218218
219219
220220
221221
222222
223223
224224
225225
226226
227227
228228
229229
230230
231231
232232
233233
234234
235235
236236
237237
238238
239239
240240
241241
242242
243243
244244
245245
246246
247247
248248
249249
250250
251251
252252
253253
254254
255255
256256
257257
258258
259259
260260
261261
262262
263263
264264
265265
266266
267267
268268
269269

0 0



Page 16 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 16

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

JJ KK
(80) (90)
Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

270270
271271

272272

273273
274274
275275

0 0
0 0

172,482 0



Page 11 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 11

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121
2222
2323
2424
2525
2626
2727
2828
2929
3030
3131
3232
3333
3434
3535
3636
3737
3838
3939
4040
4141
4242
4343
4444
4545
4646
4747
4848
4949
5050
5151

5252
5353
5454
5555

5656
5757

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

10 - EDUCATIONAL FUND (ED)
INSTRUCTION (ED)

Regular Programs 1100 4,520,479 683,456 36,325 164,166 21,820 0 0
Tuition Payment to Charter Schools 1115
Pre-K Programs 1125 70,000 15,000 650
Special Education Programs (Functions 1200 - 1220) 1200 678,464 108,199 5,844 2,050 0 0 0
Special Education Programs Pre-K 1225
Remedial and Supplemental Programs K-12 1250
Remedial and Supplemental Programs Pre-K 1275
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 1300
CTE Programs 1400
Interscholastic Programs 1500 24,886 340 29,365 9,119 0 0 0
Summer School Programs 1600 34,353 25
Gifted Programs 1650
Driver's Education Programs 1700
Bilingual Programs 1800
Truant Alternative & Optional Programs 1900
Pre-K Programs - Private Tuition 1910
Regular K-12 Programs  Private Tuition 1911
Special Education Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1912
Special Education Programs Pre-K Tuition 1913
Remedial/Supplemental Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1914
Remedial/Supplemental Programs Pre-K Private Tuition 1915
Adult/Continuing Education Programs Private Tuition 1916
CTE Programs Private Tuition 1917
Interscholastic Programs Private Tuition 1918
Summer School Programs Private Tuition 1919
Gifted Programs Private Tuition 1920
Bilingual Programs Private Tuition 1921
Truants Alternative/Opt Ed Programs Private Tuition 1922

Total Instruction14 1000 5,328,182 807,020 72,184 175,335 21,820 0 0
SUPPORT SERVICES (ED)

Support Services - Pupil
Attendance & Social Work Services 2110 169,643 25,617
Guidance Services 2120
Health Services 2130 88,853 15,744 0 1,439
Psychological Services 2140 69,913 21,009 0 50,267
Speech Pathology & Audiology Services 2150 67,714 18,360 0 300
Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190

Total Support Services - Pupil 2100 396,123 80,730 0 52,006 0 0 0
Support Services - Instructional Staff
Improvement of Instruction Services 2210 168,802 2,072 36,491 8,394
Educational Media Services 2220 408,661 76,203 290,533 126,700 30,931
Assessment & Testing 2230 13,801

Total Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200 577,463 78,275 340,825 135,094 30,931 0 0
Support Services - General Administration
Board of Education Services 2310 50,375 15,650 222,064 8,784 0 7,500
Executive Administration Services 2320 97,125 31,718 1,700 300 0 5,000
Special Area Administration Services 2330 117,311 23,172 42,112 174 0 2,599

Tort Immunity Services 2360 - 
2370

Total Support Services - General Administration 2300 264,811 70,540 265,876 9,258 0 15,099 0
Support Services - School Administration
Office of the Principal Services 2410 309,326 84,785 53,340 36,211 0 6,505
Other Support Services - School Administration                            
(Describe & Itemize)

2490

Total Support Services - School Administration 2400 309,326 84,785 53,340 36,211 0 6,505 0



Page 12 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 12

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

5858
5959
6060
6161
6262
6363
6464
6565
6666
6767
6868
6969
7070
7171
7272
7373
7474
7575
7676
7777
7878
7979
8080
8181
8282
8383

8484
8585
8686
8787
8888
8989
9090
9191

9292
9393
9494
9595
9696
9797
9898
9999

100100
101101
102102
103103
104104
105105
106106
107107
108108
109109
110110

Support Services - Business
Direction of Business Support Services 2510 97,125 31,119
Fiscal Services 2520 108,333 29,467 24,396 721 8,347
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 2540 2,479
Pupil Transportation Services 2550
Food Services 2560 45,649
Internal Services 2570 116,600

Total Support Services - Business 2500 205,458 60,586 143,475 46,370 8,347 0 0
Support Services - Central
Direction of Central Support Services 2610
Planning, Research, Development & Evaluation Services 2620 11,661 242
Information Services 2630
Staff Services 2640 13,150
Data Processing Services 2660

Total Support Services - Central 2600 0 0 24,811 242 0 0 0
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 1,753,181 374,916 828,327 279,181 39,278 21,604 0
COMMUNITY SERVICES (ED) 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (ED)

Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State)
Payments for Regular Programs 4110 13,500
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 214,023
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs 4130
Payments for CTE Programs 4140
Payments for Community College Programs 4170
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190

Total Payments to Districts and Other Govt Units                                                   
(In-State)

4100
227,523 0

Payments for Regular Programs - Tuition 4210
Payments for Special Education Programs - Tuition 4220
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs - Tuition 4230
Payments for CTE Programs - Tuition 4240
Payments for Community College Programs - Tuition 4270
Payments for Other Programs - Tuition 4280
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4290

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units - Tuition                                   
(In State)

4200
0

Payments for Regular Programs - Transfers 4310
Payments for Special Education Programs - Transfers 4320
Payments for Adult/Continuing Ed Programs - Transfers 4330
Payments for CTE Programs - Transfers 4340
Payments for Community College Program - Transfers 4370
Payments for Other Programs - Transfers 4380
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units - Transfers (Describe & Itemize 4390

Total Payments to Other District & Govt Units -                                                  
Transfers (In State)

4300
0 0

Payments to Other District & Govt Units (Out of State) 4400
Total Payments to Other District & Govt Units 4000 227,523 0

DEBT SERVICE (ED)
Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120
Corporate Personal Property Repl Tax Anticipated Notes 5130
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150

Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0



Page 13 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 13

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

111111
112112
113113
114114

115115
116116
117117
118118
119119
120120
121121
122122
123123
124124
125125
126126
127127
128128
129129
130130
131131
132132
133133
134134
135135
136136
137137
138138
139139
140140
141141
142142
143143
144144
145145
146146
147147
148148
149149
150150

151151
152152
153153
154154
155155
156156
157157
158158
159159
160160
161161
162162

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200
Total Debt Service 5000 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (ED) 6000
Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 7,081,363 1,181,936 1,128,034 454,516 61,098 21,604 0

20 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUND (O&M)
SUPPORT SERVICES (O&M)

Support Services - Pupil
Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190
Support Services - Business
Direction of Business Support Services 2510
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530 326,230 3,007,022
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 2540 90,845 26,881 367,172 187,568 366,424
Pupil Transportation Services 2550
Food Services 2560

Total Support Services - Business 2500 90,845 26,881 693,402 187,568 3,373,446 0 0
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 90,845 26,881 693,402 187,568 3,373,446 0 0
COMMUNITY SERVICES (O&M) 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (O&M)

Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State)
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120
Payments for CTE Program 4140
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190

Total Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State) 4100 0 0

Payments to Other Govt Units (Out of State) 14 4400
Total Payments to Other District and Govt Unit 4000 0 0

DEBT SERVICE (O&M)
Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipated Notes 5130
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150

Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0
Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 0

Total Debt Service 5000 0
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (O&M) 6000

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 90,845 26,881 693,402 187,568 3,373,446 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

30 - DEBT SERVICE FUND (DS)
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (DS) 4000
DEBT SERVICE (DS)

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150

Total Debt Service - Interest On Short-Term Debt 5100 0

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures



Page 14 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 14

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

163163

164164
165165
166166
167167
168168

169169170170
171171
172172
173173
174174
175175
176176
177177
178178
179179
180180
181181
182182
183183
184184
185185
186186
187187
188188

189189
190190
191191
192192
193193
194194
195195
196196
197197
198198
199199

200200
201201
202202
203203
204204

205205
206206
207207
208208
209209
210210
211211
212212
213213
214214

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 353,339
Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 15    

(Lease/Purchase Principal Retired)  
5300 668,223

Debt Service Other (Describe & Itemize) 5400
Total Debt Service 5000 0 1,021,562

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (DS) 6000
Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 0 1,021,562

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

40 - TRANSPORTATION FUND (TR)
SUPPORT SERVICES (TR)
Support Services - Pupils

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190
Support Services - Business

Pupil Transportation Services 2550 24,738
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 0 0 24,738 0 0 0 0
COMMUNITY SERVICES (TR) 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (TR)

Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State)
Payments for Regular Program 4110
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs 4130
Payments for CTE Programs 4140
Payments for Community College Programs 4170
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190

Total Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State) 4100 0 0
Payments to Other Govt Units (Out-of-State)                                    
(Describe & Itemize) 4400

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units 4000 0 0
DEBT SERVICE (TR)

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe and Itemize) 5150

Total Debt Service - Interest On Short-Term Debt 5100 0
Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200

Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 15 

(Lease/Purchase Principal Retired)

5300

Debt Service - Other (Describe and Itemize) 5400
Total Debt Service 5000 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (TR) 6000
0 0 24,738 0 0 0 0

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

50 - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SOC SEC FUND (MR/SS)
INSTRUCTION (MR/SS)

Regular Program 1100 130,245
Pre-K Programs 1125
Special Education Programs (Functions 1200-1220) 1200 22,782
Special Education Programs Pre-K 1225
Remedial and Supplemental Programs K-12 1250
Remedial and Supplemental Programs Pre-K 1275

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures



Page 15 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 15

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

215215
216216
217217
218218
219219
220220
221221
222222
223223
224224
225225
226226
227227
228228
229229
230230
231231
232232
233233
234234
235235
236236
237237
238238
239239
240240
241241
242242

243243
244244
245245
246246
247247

248248
249249
250250
251251
252252
253253

254254
255255
256256
257257
258258
259259
260260
261261
262262
263263
264264

Adult/Continuing Education Programs 1300
CTE Programs 1400
Interscholastic Programs 1500 1,099
Summer School Programs 1600 1,734
Gifted Programs 1650
Driver's Education Programs 1700
Bilingual Programs 1800
Truant Alternative & Optional Programs 1900

Total Instruction 1000 155,860
SUPPORT SERVICES (MR/SS)

Support Services - Pupil
Attendance & Social Work Services 2110 2,403
Guidance Services 2120
Health Services 2130 1,257
Psychological Services 2140 882
Speech Pathology & Audiology Services 2150 945
Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190

Total Support Services - Pupil 2100 5,487
Support Services - Instructional Staff
Improvement of Instruction Services 2210 2,777
Educational Media Services 2220 18,153
Assessment & Testing 2230

Total Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200 20,930
Support Services - General Administration
Board of Education Services 2310
Executive Administration Services 2320 3,885
Special Area Administrative Services 2330 1,698
Claims Paid from Self Insurance Fund 2361

Workers' Compensation or Workers' Occupation Disease Acts Payments 2362

Unemployment Insurance Payments 2363
Insurance Payments (regular or self-insurance) 2364
Risk Management and Claims Services Payments 2365
Judgment and Settlements 2366
Educational, Inspectional, Supervisory Services Related to Loss 
Prevention or Reduction

2367

Reciprocal Insurance Payments 2368
Legal Service 2369

Total Support Services - General Administration 2300 5,583
Support Services - School Administration
Office of the Principal Services 2410 29,915
Other Support Services - School Administration                           
(Describe & Itemize)

2490

Total Support Services - School Administration 2400 29,915
Support Services - Business
Direction of Business Support Services 2510 2,833
Fiscal Services 2520 18,233
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Service 2540 15,402
Pupil Transportation Services 2550
Food Services 2560
Internal Services 2570

Total Support Services - Business 2500 36,468



Page 16 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 16

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

265265
266266
267267
268268
269269
270270
271271
272272
273273
274274
275275
276276
277277
278278
279279
280280
281281
282282
283283
284284
285285
286286
287287
288288

289289
290290
291291
292292
293293
294294
295295
296296
297297
298298
299299
300300
301301

302302
303303
304304
305305

306306
307307
308308
309309
310310
311311
312312

313313
314314
315315
316316
317317

318318

Support Services - Central
Direction of Central Support Services 2610
Planning, Research, Development & Evaluation Services 2620
Information Services 2630
Staff Services 2640
Data Processing Services 2660

Total Support Services - Central 2600 0
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 98,383
COMMUNITY SERVICES (MR/SS) 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (MR/SS)

Payments for Special Education Programs 4120
Payments for CTE Programs 4140

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units 4000 0
DEBT SERVICE (MR/SS)

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140
Other (Describe & Itemize) 5150

Total Debt Service 5000 0
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (MR/SS) 6000

254,243 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

60 - CAPITAL PROJECTS (CP)
SUPPORT SERVICES (CP)

Support Services - Business
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (CP)

Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State)
Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State) 4100
Payment for Special Education Programs 4120
Payment for CTE Programs 4140
Other Payments to In-State Governmental Units                                
(Describe & Itemize)

4190

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units 4000 0 0
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (CP) 6000

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

70 WORKING CASH FUND (WC)

80 - TORT FUND (TF)
SUPPORT SERVICES - GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Claims Paid from Self Insurance Fund 2361
Workers' Compensation or Workers' Occupational Disease Act 
Payments

2362
32,199

Unemployment Insurance Payments 2363 8,263
Insurance Payments (regular or self-insurance) 2364 49,166
Risk Management and Claims Services Payments 2365
Judgment and Settlements 2366
Educational, Inspectional, Supervisory Services Related to Loss 
Prevention or Reduction

2367

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures



Page 17 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 17

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG HH II
(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700)

Description Funct 
# Salaries Employee 

Benefits
Purchased 
Services

Supplies & 
Materials Capital Outlay Other Objects Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

319319
320320
321321
322322
323323
324324
325325
326326

327327
328328
329329
330330
331331

332332
333333
334334
335335
336336
337337
338338
339339
340340
341341
342342
343343
344344
345345
346346
347347
348348
349349
350350

351351
352352
353353
354354

355355

Reciprocal Insurance Payments 2368
Legal Service 2369
Property Insurance (Building & Grounds) 2371
Vehicle Insurance (Transportation) 2372

 Total Support Services - General Administration 2000 0 0 89,628 0 0 0 0
DEBT SERVICE (TF)

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110

Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax Anticipation Notes 5130

Other Interest or Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150
Total Debt Service 5000 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (TF) 6000
Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 0 0 89,628 0 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

90 - FIRE PREVENTION & SAFETY FUND (FP&S)
SUPPORT SERVICES (FP&S)

Support Services - Business
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Service 2540

Total Support Services - Business 2500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900

Total Support Services 2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (FP&S)

Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units (FPS) 4000 0
DEBT SERVICE (FP&S)

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150
Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0
Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200

Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 15    

(Lease/Purchase Principal Retired)  

5300

Total Debt Service 5000 0
PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES (FP&S) 6000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over 
Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures



Page 18 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 18

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33
44
55
66
77
88
99
1010
1111
1212
1313
1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121
2222
2323
2424
2525
2626
2727
2828
2929
3030
3131
3232
3333
3434
3535
3636
3737
3838
3939
4040
4141
4242
4343
4444
4545
4646
4747
4848
4949
5050
5151

5252
5353
5454
5555

5656
5757

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

0 5,426,246
0

85,650
0 794,557

0
0
0
0
0

0 63,710
34,378

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 6,404,541

195,260
0

106,036
141,189
86,374

0
0 528,859

215,759
933,028
13,801

0 1,162,588

304,373
135,843
185,368

0
0 625,584

490,167

0
0 490,167



Page 19 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 19

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

5858
5959
6060
6161
6262
6363
6464
6565
6666
6767
6868
6969
7070
7171
7272
7373
7474
7575
7676
7777
7878
7979
8080
8181
8282
8383

8484
8585
8686
8787
8888
8989
9090
9191

9292
9393
9494
9595
9696
9797
9898
9999

100100
101101
102102
103103
104104
105105
106106
107107
108108
109109
110110

128,244
171,264

2,479
0

45,649
116,600

0 464,236

0
11,903

0
13,150

0
0 25,053

0
0 3,296,487

0

13,500
214,023

0
0
0
0

227,523
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

227,523

0
0
0
0
0
0



Page 20 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 20

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

111111
112112
113113
114114

115115
116116
117117
118118
119119
120120
121121
122122
123123
124124
125125
126126
127127
128128
129129
130130
131131
132132
133133
134134
135135
136136
137137
138138
139139
140140
141141
142142
143143
144144
145145
146146
147147
148148
149149
150150

151151
152152
153153
154154
155155
156156
157157
158158
159159
160160
161161
162162

0
0
0

0 9,928,551

262,539

0

0
3,333,252
1,038,890

0
0

0 4,372,142
0

0 4,372,142
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 4,372,142

-2,747,210

0

0
0
0
0
0
0



Page 21 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 21

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

163163

164164
165165
166166
167167
168168

169169170170
171171
172172
173173
174174
175175
176176
177177
178178
179179
180180
181181
182182
183183
184184
185185
186186
187187
188188

189189
190190
191191
192192
193193
194194
195195
196196
197197
198198
199199

200200
201201
202202
203203
204204

205205
206206
207207
208208
209209
210210
211211
212212
213213
214214

353,339

668,223
0

1,021,562
0

1,021,562

34,507

0

24,738
0

0 24,738
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0 24,738

-12,423

130,245
0

22,782
0
0
0



Page 22 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 22

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

215215
216216
217217
218218
219219
220220
221221
222222
223223
224224
225225
226226
227227
228228
229229
230230
231231
232232
233233
234234
235235
236236
237237
238238
239239
240240
241241
242242

243243
244244
245245
246246
247247

248248
249249
250250
251251
252252
253253

254254
255255
256256
257257
258258
259259
260260
261261
262262
263263
264264

0
0

1,099
1,734

0
0
0
0

155,860

2,403
0

1,257
882
945

0
5,487

2,777
18,153

0
20,930

0
3,885
1,698

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

5,583

29,915

0
29,915

2,833
18,233

0
15,402

0
0
0

36,468



Page 23 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 23

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

265265
266266
267267
268268
269269
270270
271271
272272
273273
274274
275275
276276
277277
278278
279279
280280
281281
282282
283283
284284
285285
286286
287287
288288

289289
290290
291291
292292
293293
294294
295295
296296
297297
298298
299299
300300
301301

302302
303303
304304
305305

306306
307307
308308
309309
310310
311311
312312

313313
314314
315315
316316
317317

318318

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

98,383
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

254,243

22,629

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

32,199
8,263

49,166
0
0

0



Page 24 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 24

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22
33

JJ KK
(800) (900)

Termination 
Benefits Total

319319
320320
321321
322322
323323
324324
325325
326326

327327
328328
329329
330330
331331

332332
333333
334334
335335
336336
337337
338338
339339
340340
341341
342342
343343
344344
345345
346346
347347
348348
349349
350350

351351
352352
353353
354354

355355

0
0
0
0

89,628

0

0
0
0
0

89,628

82,854

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0



Page 19 Page 19

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11

22

33

44
55
66
77
88

99
1010
1111

1212

1313

1414

1515

AA BB CC DD EE FF

Kenilworth School District 38             05-016-038-002

DEFICIT BUDGET SUMMARY INFORMATION - Operating Funds Only

EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS & 
MAINTENANCE TRANSPORTATION WORKING CASH TOTAL

Direct Revenues 10,191,090 1,624,932 12,315 85,000 11,913,337
Direct Expenditures 9,928,551 4,372,142 24,738 14,325,431

Difference 262,539 -2,747,210 -12,423 85,000 -2,412,094
Estimated Fund Balance - June 30, 2016 7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

The deficit reduction plan, if required, is developed using ISBE guidelines and format. 

Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit reduction plan is not required at 
this time.

A deficit reduction plan is required if the local board of education adopts (or amends) the 2015-16 school district budget in which the “operating funds” listed 
above result in direct revenues (line 9) being less than direct expenditures (line 19) by an amount equal to or greater than one-third (1/3) of the ending fund 
balance (line 81).

Note:  The balance is determined using only the four funds listed above.  That is, if the estimated ending fund balance is less than three times the deficit 
spending, the district must adopt and file with ISBE a deficit reduction plan to balance the shortfall within three years.

The School Code, Section 17-1 (105 ILCS 5/17-1) - If the 2014-2015 Annual Financial Report (AFR) reflects a deficit as defined above (page 36), then the 
school district shall adopt and submit a deficit reduction plan (found here on page 20-24) to ISBE within 30 days after acceptance of the AFR.



Page 20 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION

Page 20

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11
22
33
44
55

66

77

88
99

1010
1111
1212
1313

1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222

2323
2424
2525
2626
2727

AA BB CC DD EE FF GG

Kenilworth School District 38         05-016-038-002
District Number

Educational Fund Operations & 
Maintenance Fund Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

7,478,181 3,367,683 190,331 2,999,547 14,035,742

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct 
No.

LOCAL SOURCES 1000 9,846,590 1,624,932 12,315 85,000 11,568,837
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                           
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT 2000 0 0 0 0
STATE SOURCES 3000 239,500 0 0 0 239,500
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 105,000 0 0 0 105,000

10,191,090 1,624,932 12,315 85,000 11,913,337

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct 
No.

INSTRUCTION 1000 6,404,541 6,404,541
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000 3,296,487 4,372,142 24,738 7,693,367
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000 0 0 0 0
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000 227,523 0 0 227,523
DEBT SERVICES 5000 0 0 0 0
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000 0 0 0 0

9,928,551 4,372,142 24,738 14,325,431

262,539 -2,747,210 -12,423 85,000 -2,412,094

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000) 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000) 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                (must equal 
prior Ending Fund Balance)

DEFICIT REDUCTION PLAN

FY2015-16
ESTIMATED BUDGET



Page 21 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION

Page 21

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11
22
33
44
55

66

77

88
99

1010
1111
1212
1313

1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222

2323
2424
2525
2626
2727

AA BB

Kenilworth School District 38         05-016-038-002
District Number

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct 
No.

LOCAL SOURCES 1000
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                           
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT 2000

STATE SOURCES 3000
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct 
No.

INSTRUCTION 1000
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000
DEBT SERVICES 5000
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)
OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                (must equal 
prior Ending Fund Balance)

HH II JJ KK LL

Educational Fund Operations & 
Maintenance Fund Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

0

0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0

0 0 0 0 0
7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

FY2016-17
ESTIMATED BUDGET



Page 22 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION

Page 22

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11
22
33
44
55

66

77

88
99

1010
1111
1212
1313

1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222

2323
2424
2525
2626
2727

AA BB

Kenilworth School District 38         05-016-038-002
District Number

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct 
No.

LOCAL SOURCES 1000
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                           
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT 2000

STATE SOURCES 3000
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct 
No.

INSTRUCTION 1000
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000
DEBT SERVICES 5000
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)
OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                (must equal 
prior Ending Fund Balance)

MM NN OO PP QQ

Educational Fund Operations & 
Maintenance Fund Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

0

0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0

0 0 0 0 0
7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

ESTIMATED BUDGET
FY2017-18



Page 23 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION

Page 23

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11
22
33
44
55

66

77

88
99

1010
1111
1212
1313

1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222

2323
2424
2525
2626
2727

AA BB

Kenilworth School District 38         05-016-038-002
District Number

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct 
No.

LOCAL SOURCES 1000
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                           
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT 2000

STATE SOURCES 3000
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct 
No.

INSTRUCTION 1000
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000
DEBT SERVICES 5000
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)
OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                (must equal 
prior Ending Fund Balance)

RR SS TT UU VV

Educational Fund Operations & 
Maintenance Fund Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

0

0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0
0

0 0 0 0 0
7,740,720 620,473 177,908 3,084,547 11,623,648

ESTIMATED BUDGET
FY2018-19



Page 24 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION

Page 24

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

11
22
33
44
55

66

77

88
99

1010
1111
1212
1313

1414
1515
1616
1717
1818
1919
2020
2121

2222

2323
2424
2525
2626
2727

AA BB

Kenilworth School District 38         05-016-038-002
District Number

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct 
No.

LOCAL SOURCES 1000
FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                           
DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT 2000

STATE SOURCES 3000
FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct 
No.

INSTRUCTION 1000
SUPPORT SERVICES 2000
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000
PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000
DEBT SERVICES 5000
PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS
OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)
OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                (must equal 
prior Ending Fund Balance)

WW XX YY ZZ

(Enter as MM/DD/YY)

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2017-18 FY2018-19

14,035,742 11,623,648 11,623,648 11,623,648

11,568,837 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
239,500 0 0 0
105,000 0 0 0

11,913,337 0 0 0

6,404,541 0 0 0
7,693,367 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
227,523 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

14,325,431 0 0 0

-2,412,094 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

11,623,648 11,623,648 11,623,648 11,623,648

SUMMARY

Date of Adoption:

BUDGET ADDENDUM - DEFICIT REDUCTION PLAN
ESTIMATED BUDGET



Page 27 Page 27

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-
872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

Deficit Reduction Plan-Background/Assumptions
Fiscal Year 2016 through Fiscal Year 2019

Kenilworth School District 38              05-016-038-002

Please complete the following schedule and include a brief description to identify any areas of the budget that will be impacted from one year to the next.  If the 
deficit reduction plan relies upon new local revenues, identify contingencies for further budget reductions which will be enacted in the event those new revenues 
are not available.  For additional information, please see: 

http://www.isbe.net/sfms/budget/default.htm

Background and Narrative of Budget Reductions:

Assumptions Used in the Deficit Reduction Plan:

- Foundation Levels for General State Aid:

- Equal Assessed Valuation and Tax Rates:

- Employee Salaries and Benefits:



Page 28 Page 28

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-
872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

- Short and Long Term Borrowing:

- Educational Impact:

- Other Assumptions:

- Has the district considered shared services or outsourcing (Ex: Transportation, Insurance) If yes please explain:



Page 27 Page 27

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

0

This is an estimated Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet only and will not be accepted for Official Submission of the Limitation of
Administrative Costs Worksheet.    

The worksheet is intended for use during the budgeting process  to estimate the district's percent increase of FY2016 budgeted expenditures over FY2015 actual expenditures.  
Budget information is copied to this page.  Insert the prior year estimated actual expenditures to compute the estimated percentage increase (decrease).

The official Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet is attached to the end of the Annual An official Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet can
Financial Report (ISBE Form 50-35) and may be submitted in conjunction with that report. also be found on the ISBE website at:

School District Name:

RCDT Number:

(10) (20) (10) (20)

Description Funct. No. Educational Operations & 
Maintenance Total Educational Operations & 

Maintenance Total

1. Executive Administration Services 2320 323,406 323,406 135,843 135,843
2. Special Area Administration Services 2330 174,022 174,022 185,368 185,368
3. Other Support Services - School Administration 2490 0 0 0
4. Direction of Business Support Services 2510 231,968 231,968 128,244 0 128,244
5. Internal Services 2570 6,960 6,960 116,600 116,600
6. Direction of Central Support Services 2610 0 0 0 0
7.

0 0

8. Totals 736,356 0 736,356 566,055 0 566,055
9.

-23%Estimated Percent Increase (Decrease) for FY2016 (Budgeted) 
over FY2015 (Actual)

Deduct - Early Retirement or other pension obligations required by 
state law and include above

Estimated Actual Expenditures,                           
Fiscal Year 2015

Budgeted Expenditures,                                      
Fiscal Year 2016

(For Local Use Only)
ESTIMATED LIMITATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

(Section 17-1.5 of the School Code)

ESTIMATED LIMITATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS WORKSHEET
Kenilworth School District 38

05-016-038-002

Limitation of Administrative Costs



Page 28 Page 28

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

Kenilworth School District 38      05-016-038-002

  See:  School Code, Section 10-20.21 - Contracts

(Sheet is unprotected and can be re-formatted as needed, but must be used for submission)

Name of Vendor Product or Service 
Provided Net Revenue Non-Monetary 

Remuneration Purpose of Proceeds

In accordance with the School Code, Section 10-20.21, all school districts are required to file a report listing ‘vendor contracts’ as an attachment to their budget.   In this context, the term "vendor contracts" refers to "all 
contracts and agreements that pertain to goods and services that were intended to generate additional revenue and other remunerations for the school district in excess of $1,000, including without limitation vending 
machine contracts, sports and other attire, class rings, and photographic services.  The report is to list information regarding such contracts for the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year of the budget.  All 
such contracts executed on or after July 1, 2007 must be approved by the school board.

REPORTING OF PUBLIC VENDOR CONTRACTS OF $1,000 OR MORE



Page 30 Page 30

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

Distribution Method and Recipient of 
Non-Monetary Remunerations 

Distributed

In accordance with the School Code, Section 10-20.21, all school districts are required to file a report listing ‘vendor contracts’ as an attachment to their budget.   In this context, the term "vendor contracts" refers to "all 
contracts and agreements that pertain to goods and services that were intended to generate additional revenue and other remunerations for the school district in excess of $1,000, including without limitation vending 
machine contracts, sports and other attire, class rings, and photographic services.  The report is to list information regarding such contracts for the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year of the budget.  All 
such contracts executed on or after July 1, 2007 must be approved by the school board.

REPORTING OF PUBLIC VENDOR CONTRACTS OF $1,000 OR MORE



Page 29 REFERENCE PAGE Page 29

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-
872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls     9/18/15

Reference Description
1 Each fund balance should correspond to the fund balance reflected on the books as of June 30th - Balance Sheet Accounts #720 and #730 (audit figures, 

if available).

2 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance.  The "On-Behalf" Payments should only be reflected on this page 
(Budget Summary, Lines 10 and 20).

3 Requires the secretary of the school board to notify the county clerk (within 30 days of the transfer approval) to abate an equal amount of taxes to be next 
extended.  See Sec. 10-22.14 & 17-2.11.

3a Requires notification to the county clerk to abate an equal amount from taxes next extended.  See section 10-22.14
4 Principal on Bonds Sold:

(1)  Funding Bonds are to be entered in the fund or funds in which the liability occurs.

(2)  Refunding Bonds can be entered in the Debt Services Fund only.

(3)  Building Bonds can be entered in the Capital Projects Fund only.

(4)  Fire Prevention and Safety Bonds can be entered in the Fire Prevention & Safety Fund only.

5 The proceeds from the sale of school sites, buildings, or other real estate shall be used first to pay the principal and interest on any outstanding bonds on 
the property being sold, and after all such bonds have been retired, the remaining proceeds from the sale next shall be used by the school board to meet 
any urgent district needs as determined under Sections 2-3.12 and 17-2.11 of the School Code.  Once these issues have been addressed, any remaining 
proceeds may be used for any other authorized purpose and for deposit into any district fund.

6 The School Code, Section 10-22.44 prohibits the transfer of interest earned on the investment of "any funds for purposes of Illinois Municipal Retirement 
under the Pension Code."  This prohibition does not include funds for Social Security and Medicare-only purposes.  For additional requirements on interest 
earnings, see 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part 100, Section 100.50.

7 Cash plus investments must be greater than or equal to zero.

8 For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Receipts/Revenues (Line 9) plus Total Other Sources of Funds (Line 46).

9 For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (Line 19) plus Total Other Uses of Funds (Line 
79).

10 Working Cash Fund loans may be made to any district fund for which taxes are levied (Section 20-5 of the School Code).

11 Include revenue accounts 1110 through 1115, 1117,1118 & 1120.

12 The School Code Section 17-2.2c.  Tax for leasing educational facilities or computer technology or both, and for temporary relocation expense purposes.

13 Corporate personal property replacement tax revenue must be first applied to the Municipal Retirement/Social Security Fund to replace tax revenue lost 
due to the abolition of the corporate personal property tax (30 ILCS 115/12).  This provision does not apply to taxes levied for Medicare-Only purposes.

14 Only tuition payments made to private facilities.  See Functions 4200 or 4400 for estimated public facility disbursements/expenditures.

15 Payment towards the retirement of lease/purchase agreements or bonded/other indebtedness (principal only) otherwise reported within the fund - e.g.: 
alternate revenue bonds.  (Describe & Itemize)

16 Only abolishment of Working Cash Fund must transfer its funds directly to the Educational Fund upon adoption of a resolution and
at the close of the current school Year (see 105 ILCS 5/20-8 for further explanation)
Only abatement of working cash fund can transfer its funds to any fund in most need of money 
(see 105 ILCS 5/20-10 for further explanation)



Page 30 Page 30

Macintosh HD:private:var:folders:gn:y0tsx52j1_sccf3mp_wd5m3h0000gn:T:Acr404262101596928-872175.tmp:4AAC6514222DE0D3C99EADB3917E8B60.xls 9/18/15

Budget Item References
Is Deficit Reduction Plan Required?
If required, is Deficit Reduction Plan Completed (Page:  DefReductPlan 20-24)?

1. Cover Page - CASH or  ACCRUAL
Check one type of Accounting Basis used on the Cover sheet.

2.
Estimated Beginning Fund Balance July,1 2015 for all Funds (Cells C3 - K3)(Line must have a number or 
zero)
Transfer Among Funds (Funds 10, 20, 40 - Acct 7130 - Cells C29, D29, F29), must equal (Funds 10, 20 
& 40 - Acct 8130 - Cells C52, D52, F52).
Transfer of Interest (Funds 10 thru 90 - Acct 7140 - Cells C30:K30), must equal (Funds 10 thru 60, & 
80 - Acct 8140 - Cells C53:H53, J53).
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7400 - Cell E39) must equal 
(Funds 10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8400 Cells C57:H60).
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7500 - Cell E40) must equal 
(Funds 10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8500 - Cells C61:H64).
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds (Fund 30 - Acct 7600 - Cell E41) must 
equal (Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8600 - Cells C65:D68).
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds (Fund 30 - Acct 7700 - Cell E42) must equal 
(Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8700 - Cells C69:D72).
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund (Fund 60 - Acct 7800 - Cell H43) must equal (Fund 10 & 20, Acct 8800 
- Cells C73:D76).

3.
 Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C3)
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D3)
Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E3)
Transportation (Fund 40 - Cell F3)
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G3)
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - Cell H3)
Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell I3)
Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J3)
Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K3)

4.
Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C21)
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D21)
Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E21)
Transportation (Fund 40 - F21)
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G21)
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - H21)
Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell I21)
Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J21)
Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K21)

5.

Interfund Loans Payable (Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C6:H6, J6:K6) must equal Interfund 
Loans Receivable (Funds 10:20, 40, 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C15:D15, F15, I15).

Interfund Loans Receivable (Funds 10, 20, 40 & 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C7:D7, F7, I7) must equal 
Interfund Loans Payable (Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C16:H16, J16, K16).

End of Balancing

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Ending Cash Balance on Hand June 30, 2016, (Page CashSum 4 - All Funds), cannot be negative.

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Other Receipts, (Page CashSum 4), must equal Other Disbursements,                                                                            (Page 
CashSum 4).

CHECK FOR ERRORS
This worksheet checks various cells to assure that selected items are in balance.

Out-of-balance conditions are accompanied by an error message.
Errors must be corrected before the budget is finalized and submitted to ISBE.

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Beginning Cash Balance on Hand July 1, 2015, (CashSum 4, All Funds), cannot be negative.

Budget Summary:  Other Sources (Page BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct 7000), must equal Other Uses (BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct. 8000).



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO/District FOIA Officer 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Freedom of Information Act Requests 
 
The following Freedom of Information Act Request has been received and responded to since the 
last Regular Board of Education meeting: 
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow on September 9, 2015 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 

1. Current Enrollment Projection Report 
 
The response will be provided on September 22, 2015 after the document has been presented to 
the Board of Education. There are no expected legal fees. It will take time required on the part of 
myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
From Mr. Patrick McCraney from the Better Government Association on September 15, 2015 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of the Better Government Association: 
 

1. Collective Bargaining Agreements: Any and all current collective bargaining agreements, 
including but not limited to union contracts with teachers. If a union is currently operating under 
an expired contract, please include it. 

2. Administrator Contracts: Any and all employment/personnel agreements and contracts with 
current administrators, including but not limited to superintendents and principals. 

3. Budget: The approved operating and capital budgets for the 2015-16 school year. 
4. Legal Settlements: Any and all legal settlements entered into, signed, or otherwise adopted from 

January 1, 2014 to present.    
5. Payroll: Documents sufficient to show the names and corresponding job titles and salaries 

of any and all district employees and board members as of today (In other words, the 
current payroll records that include names, positions and pay for all employees, not just teachers 
and administrators). 

 
The response is being developed in consultation with our legal counsel, Heidi Katz. The cost for 
the legal fees related to this response will be posted in this memorandum when received. The 
response will be provided within the required timeframe. It will require time on the part of 
myself and Ms. Angela Lascola to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Superintendent’s Report 
 
 
 
Please see below for information on a new policy and the delivery of board-requested 
deliverables.  
 
Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act 
We wanted to bring to your attention a bill that Governor Rauner signed into law concerning 
concussion safety. The Bill is known as SB007, or as the Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act. 
 
The Bill mandates that the governing body of each public or charter school and the appropriate 
administrative officer of a private school with students enrolled who participate in an 
interscholastic athletic activity shall appoint or approve a concussion oversight team. 
 
The concussion oversight team must include to the extent practicable at least one physician. If the 
school employs an athletic trainer, or nurse, they must be a member of the school concussion 
oversight team to the extent practicable. In addition, at a minimum, a school shall appoint a 
person who is responsible for implementing and complying with the Return-to-Play and Return-
to-Learn protocols adopted by the concussion oversight team. 
 
The athlete may return to play when the following have been completed: 

• Have completed both the Return-to-Learn and Return-to-Play programs. 
• Written clearance from a physician stating athlete is cleared to play. 
• Signed parental consent form. 

 
The Superintendent or the District’s designee shall be responsible for the compliance of the 
Return-to-Learn and Return-to-Play policies. In addition the District’s designee may not coach 
any interscholastic sport. 
 
The IHSA will be posting additional material on the educational process and who within our 
district must be educated on concussion protocols. All education must be completed by 
September 1, 2016. To ensure compliance, the District will start the implementation process 
during the 2015-2016 school year.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Calendar of Reoccurring Board of Education Agenda Items 
 
The Board of Education requested a document to assist with the annual Board planning and 
preparation process. Attached to my report, you will find a Calendar of Reoccurring Board of 
Education Agenda Items. This calendar is based on Board agendas from the prior years. I have 
highlighted a few agenda items in blue for discussion to consider possible date changes. 
 
School Reference Contact Guides 
 
The Board of Education requested a document to provide a contact list for school personnel.  
Since the needs of the community differ from the needs of the internal faculty and staff, two lists 
were created. Attached to my report, you will find a draft of the School Reference Contact Guide for 
the Community. A similar guide will be developed for the faculty and staff. 
 
Meet the New Administrative Leadership Team 
 
The Administrative Leadership team has hosted two meet and greets sessions. Since both 
sessions were held prior to the start of the school year, it was suggested that another session be 
held after school starts. This additional session would provide an opportunity for families that 
may have been on vacation or unavailable prior to the start of school. This last session will be 
held from 8:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. on Tuesday, September 29, 2015 in the Multipurpose Room. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 



Annual Calendar of Activities for Board of Education 

CALENDAR OF RE-OCCURRING BOARD OF EDUCATION AGENDA ITEMS 
Updated September 21, 2015 

 
JULY  

§ Employ New Faculty and Staff 
§ Review Close of Fiscal Year Information 
§ Review, Refined and Develop annual Action Items for the Strategic Plan (formerly Areas of Focus) 

 
AUGUST 

§ Employ New Faculty and Staff 
§ Presentation of Initial Fiscal Year Budget Draft for Public Display 
§ Presentation and Approval of Curriculum Renewal Recommendations (from summer work) 
§ Update Regarding Enrollment and Projected Classroom Sizes 

 
SEPTEMBER 

§ Approval of Annual Recognition Application for Illinois State Board of Education 
§ Presentation of Initial PARCC (Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers) 

Data 
§ Update Regarding Enrollment and Actual Classroom Sizes 
§ Public Hearing and Approval of Fiscal Year Budget 
§ Approval to Post Annual Administrative Salary Itemized Report 
§ Semi-Annual Review of Closed Session Minutes 
§ Authorization for Administration to Prepare Next Fiscal Year Budget 

 
OCTOBER 

§ Review and Approve Annual School Report Card Data for Public Release 
§ Set Date for November Faculty Appreciation Reception 

 
NOVEMBER 

§ Review and Approve Annual District Audit 
§ Review and Approve Resolution Regarding Initial Tax Levy Information 
§ Approve of Junior Kindergarten and Kindergarten Tuition for Next Fiscal Year 

 
DECEMBER 

§ Public Hearing for Tax Levy Proposal, if required 
§ Approve Tax Levy for Next Fiscal Year 

 
JANUARY 

§ Review Proposed Calendar for Next School Year 
§ Review Timeline for Superintendent Performance Evaluation 

 
FEBRUARY 

§ Initial Review of Non-Tenure Teacher Evaluations and Recommendations 
§ Initial Review of Projected Staffing Needs for Next School Year 
§ Review by Superintendent of Administrative Team Performance Evaluations 
§ Approve Annual Calendar for Next School Year 
§ Approve Annual Fees for Next School Year 



Annual Calendar of Activities for Board of Education 

 
MARCH 

§ Review and Approve Re-Hiring and Non-Renewal of Non-Tenured Teachers 
§ Semi-Annual Review of Closed Session Minutes 
§ Presentation of Textbook Materials Proposed for Adoption Consideration 

 
APRIL 

§ Approve Bids for Summer Building and Grounds Work 
§ Adoption of Textbook Materials 
§ Approval of Revised School Year Calendar 
§ Employ New Faculty and Staff 
§ Begin Superintendent Performance Evaluation 

 
MAY 

§ Reorganization Meeting, if Board Election, including Approval of Board Member Agreements 
§ Establish Board of Education Regular Meeting Dates for the Next Twelve (12) Months 
§ Initial Review of New Action Plan with new Strategic Plan 
§ Review of Summer Professional Development Activities 
§ Employ New Faculty and Staff 

 
JUNE 

§ Presentation of District Committee Annual Reports and Recommendations 
§ Establish Salaries for Non-Kenilworth Education Association Personnel for Next Fiscal Year 
§ Authorize Bill Reviewer to Approve Payment of Bills for June, July and August, if needed 
§ Approve of Resolution to Adopt the Prevailing Wage Rates  
§ Approve Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer Association Allocation Requests 
§ Employ New Faculty and Staff 
§ Approve Board Policies for Inclusion in District Handbook/Calendar 

 
*Agenda items in blue are under consideration for a possible date change. 



	
  

	
  

The	
  2015-­‐2016	
  Sears	
  School	
  Contact	
  Reference	
  Guide	
  
Community	
  

Contact	
  this	
  person…	
   If	
  you	
  have	
  questions	
  or	
  concerns	
  
regarding…	
  

Superintendent/Chief	
  School	
  Business	
  Officer	
  	
  
Dr.	
  Crystal	
  LeRoy	
  
cleroy@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3805	
  

- District	
  policy	
  and	
  compliance	
  
- School	
  board	
  policies	
  and	
  procedures	
  
- Freedom	
  of	
  Information	
  Act	
  Requests	
  
- Building	
  and	
  Grounds	
  
- District	
  financials	
  
- School	
  and	
  athletic	
  fee	
  waivers	
  

	
  
Principal	
  	
  
Mrs.	
  Kendra	
  Wallace	
  
kwallace@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3802	
  

- School	
  culture/climate	
  
- Specific	
  issues	
  related	
  to	
  teachers	
  or	
  

school	
  employees	
  (after	
  first	
  contacting	
  
the	
  teacher)	
  

- Bullying	
  or	
  complaints	
  
- School	
  curriculum/homework	
  
- School	
  events	
  
- Student	
  clubs/activities/field	
  trips	
  
- Technology	
  
- School	
  policy/rules	
  
- Assessment	
  

	
  
Director	
  of	
  Student	
  Services	
  	
  
Ms.	
  Julia	
  Jones	
  
jjones@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3806	
  

- 504	
  Plans	
  
- English	
  as	
  a	
  Second	
  Language	
  
- Gifted	
  education	
  
- Homebound/Hospital	
  Instruction	
  
- Homeless	
  liaison	
  	
  
- Response	
  to	
  Intervention	
  (RtI)	
  
- Social	
  emotional	
  learning	
  
- Special	
  education,	
  including	
  request	
  for	
  

evaluation	
  
	
  

Executive	
  Assistant	
  to	
  the	
  Administration	
  	
  
Mrs.	
  Julie	
  Campanaro	
  
jcampanaro@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3801	
  

- The	
  school	
  calendar	
  
- Room	
  reservations	
  and	
  usage	
  
- Building	
  rental	
  and	
  usage	
  

	
  
Communication	
  Coordinator	
  	
  
Mr.	
  Chike	
  Erokwu	
  
cerokwu@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3882	
  

- Media	
  or	
  news	
  coverage	
  at	
  Sears	
  
- School	
  photography	
  
- The	
  school	
  website	
  
- All	
  school	
  and	
  district	
  publications	
  
- Sears	
  to	
  Home	
  

	
  
Bookkeeper	
  	
  
Trish	
  Culhane	
  
tculhane@kenilworth38.org	
  
847-­‐853-­‐3867	
  

- Payments	
  owed	
  or	
  made	
  to	
  school	
  
- Accounts	
  Receivable	
  
- Accounts	
  Payable	
  

	
  
Athletic	
  Director	
  
Natalie	
  McLemore	
  

- School	
  Athletics	
  
	
  

School	
  Administrative	
  Assistant	
  	
  
Mrs.	
  Dale	
  Luksha	
  
dluksha@kenilworth38.org	
  
	
  

- Registration	
  
- General	
  information	
  for	
  new	
  families	
  	
  
- Scheduling	
  a	
  tour	
  of	
  Sears	
  

	
  
	
  



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Chief School Business Officer’s Report 
 
 
 
Accounts Payable Review 
The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills list or 
require an explanation: 
 
 
Explanation: District Printing Services 

 
 
 
Explanation: District Data Consultant  

 
 

 
Explanation: Communications and Graphic Consultant Services   

 
 
 
Explanation: Landscaping Services – Annual Fall Maintenance and Transplanting  

 
 
Recommendation for Investment Services 
The Building and Finance Committee has previously discussed various options for the District’s 
investments. Specifically, the committee discussed how combining investments would provide 
the District with more flexibility and help to ensure compliance. Currently the District uses three 
financial sources for their investments: 
 

• Chase Bank 
• IIIT/PFM Asset Management 
• PMA Financial Network 

 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

After researching the services of each firm, I confirmed the return on investments is fairly 
comparable among them. However, PMA Financial is the only firm to offer additional cash flow 
analysis services, free of charge, in conjunction with providing investment services.  
 
Additionally, I have previously worked with PMA Financial and I have had very good 
experiences with their services. Therefore, I recommend the Board favorably approve the District 
designate PMA Financial Network as the single broker for investment services. Please see the 
attached presentation for additional background and service information for PMA Financial 
Network. 
 
Authorization for Administration to Prepare Fiscal Year 2017 
The Administration will request authorization to begin preparing for the FY17 Budget on the 
Consent agenda. 
 
Authorization for Bill Reviewer to Approve Payment of Accounts Payable for October 2015 
There is not a Board meeting during the month of October.  It is the District’s practice to 
designate a Bill Reviewer to approve payment of accounts payable to ensure timely payment for 
District expenses.   
 
Update on Property Tax Freeze 
 
The property tax freeze could be back on the table.  The property tax freeze bill that passed the 
Senate last month and is awaiting action in the House.  The main provisions of Senate Bill 318 
include: 

• Freezing property taxes for 2016 and 2017 (2017 and 2018 for Cook County) and placing a 
hard cap of zero for school districts for the next two years. 

• Allowing extensions only if approved by referendum (exempting levies for public safety 
purposes). 

• Setting a date of June 1, 2017 for the GSA formula and the Chicago Public School System 
block grant formula to sunset. 

• Creating a GSA committee to study a new funding formula for school districts, with a 
report being required by December 31, 2016. The proposal was for the committee to 
include three legislators from each of the four caucuses. Sen. Chapin Rose (R-Mahomet) 
during the Senate floor debate said he thought representatives from the Vision 20/20 
initiative also should be on the commission. 

• Requiring the state to pay the normal cost for the Chicago Teachers' Pension Fund 
(CTPF), paying $197 million in FY 2016 and the certified amount of the normal pension 
cost in later years. Senate President John Cullerton (D-Chicago) termed the provision 
"pension parity." 

• Increasing state funding for public education by $74 million for FY16, with the additional 
money being targeted for the neediest school districts. 

 
The House is not scheduled to return until September 24th.  I will continue to keep the Board 
updated on the status of this bill. 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 



08/27/15

1

KENILWORTH SD #38
INVESTMENT SERVICES

AUDRA SCHARF
VICE PRESIDENT
PMA FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC.

August 21, 2015

HEATHER GORNY
SENIOR PORTFOLIO ADVISOR
PMA FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC.

• PMA Overview

• Cash Flow Analysis

• Investment Process
• Investment Management
• Risk Management
• Allowable Investments
• Bid Management
• Fees

OVERVIEW



08/27/15

2

• 30 years working exclusively with school 
districts, community colleges and municipalities

• Approximately 2000 clients in ten states.  
• Over $14.5 billion of total investment assets as 

of 9/30/14
• For the 12­month period ending June 30, 2015, 

PMA was the number one ranked financial 
advisor for the eighth year in a row to K­12 
districts in Illinois.*  

**Source: Thomson Reuters. Based on the par amount and number of issues advised upon for Illinois K-12 districts during the 12-month period ending June 30, 2015. 
Includes Financial Advisors on negotiated and competitive sales. Please note that past performance does not indicate future results. Does not include Chicago Board of 
Education.  Please not that past performance does not indicate future results.

PMA OVERVIEW

• Cash Flow Analysis
• Formal Organization of Projected Inflows and 

Outflows
• Maximize Interest Income

• Risk Management Program
• Investment Objectives
• Credit Quality

• Bid Management
• Competitive Trade Execution Platform

INVESTMENTS



08/27/15

3

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

96%

3% 1%

Budget Allocation

Local State Federal Other

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

JU
L

SE
P

N
O

V

JA
N

M
A

R

M
A

Y

Current
Budget

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

62%
11%

9%

6%
10% 2%

Budget Allocation

Salaries

Benefits

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%

JU
L

SE
P

N
O

V

JA
N

M
A

R

M
A

Y

Current Budget
2-year Projection



08/27/15

4

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

$14.0

$16.0

$18.0

$20.0
Ju

n-
13

Ju
l-1

3

A
u

g-
13

S
ep

-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

N
o

v-
13

D
ec

-1
3

Ja
n

-1
4

F
eb

-1
4

M
ar

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

M
ay

-1
4

Ju
n-

14

Ju
l-1

4

A
u

g-
14

S
ep

-1
4

O
ct

-1
4

N
o

v-
14

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n

-1
5

F
eb

-1
5

M
ar

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n-

15

Ju
l-1

5

A
u

g-
15

S
ep

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
15

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

F
eb

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

M
ill

io
n

s

Total Funds Balance (excluding Capital Projects)

Targeted Liquidity Long Term Investments (1year +) Previous/Current Investments

Optimized Investments (<1 year) Short Term Investments Short Term Borrowing

Funds Balance

• PMA’s Investment Objectives
• Safety of Principal
• Liquidity
• Yield

• Quarterly Credit Analysis Performed on all 
Investments

• Ability to Offer All Investments Allowable Per 
State Statute (30 ILCS 235)

RISK MANAGEMENT



08/27/15

5

INVESTMENTS

908/27/15

• U.S. Treasury
• U.S. Agency
• U.S. Instrumentality 

(some)
• Certificates of Deposit
• Demand/Checking 

Accounts
• Commercial Paper/BAs
• Municipal Bonds

• Money Market Funds
• Repurchase Agreement
• Public Treasurers’ 

Investment Pool
• ­ ISDLAF+ Multi­Class 

Series

• Industry/Market Analysis
• Monitors Local, Regional and National Economy

• Trade Execution Platform
• Access to our National Network of Providers

– Inventory of over 20 Securities Dealers 
– Vast Market Coverage (1100 + Bank Relationships)
– Inclusive of Local Banks

• Credit screening and Monitoring of all 
Institutions

• Variety of Product

BID MANAGEMENT



08/27/15

6

• Client Communication

• Cash Flow Monitoring and Reinvestment

• Ongoing Credit Monitoring

• Reporting
• Transaction
• Daily Access via On­line System
• Monthly Activity Statements
• Monthly Collateral Statements

BID MANAGEMENT

• Common law trust organized and existing under 
Illinois State Statue

• Governed by a Board of Trustees elected from 
fund participants

• AAA money market fund by S&P
• Rating reaffirmed on a weekly basis 
• Maintains a $1.00 per share Net Asset Value

1208/27/15

BID MANAGEMENT



08/27/15

7

FEE STRUCTURE

1308/27/15

• Governed by the ISDLAF Information 
Statement
• Maximum Fee Limited to:

– Government Agency/Treasury Security: 15bps
– FDIC Insured Certificate of Deposit: 25bps
– Collateralized Certificate of Deposit: 35bps

• PMA is compensated on a Per Transaction 
Basis Which Includes but is not Limited to the 
Following:

– Credit/Collateral Monitoring
– Safekeeping Charges
– Wire Transfers
– Periodic Reporting
– Administrative Costs

• The information contained herein is solely intended to suggest/discuss potentially applicable financing applications and is not intended to be 
a specific buy/sell recommendation, nor is it an official confirmation of terms.  Any terms discussed herein are preliminary until confirmed in 
a definitive written agreement.

• The analysis or information presented herein is based upon hypothetical projections and/or past performance that have certain limitations. 
No representation is made that it is accurate or complete or that any results indicated will be achieved.  In no way is past performance 
indicative of future results.  Changes to any prices, levels, or assumptions contained herein may have a material impact on results.  Any 
estimates or assumptions contained herein represent our best judgment as of the date indicated and are subject to change without notice.  
Examples are merely representative and are not meant to be all-inclusive.

• The information set forth herein was gathered from sources which we believe, but do not guarantee, to be accurate. Neither the 
information, nor any options expressed, constitute a solicitation by us for purposes of sale or purchase of any securities or commodities. 
Investment/financing decisions by market participants should not be based on this information.

• You should consider certain economic risks (and other legal, tax, and accounting consequences) prior to entering into any type of 
transaction with PMA Securities, Inc. or PMA Financial Network, Inc.  It is imperative that any prospective client perform its own research 
and due diligence, independent of us or our affiliates, to determine suitability of the proposed transaction with respect to the aforementioned 
potential economic risks and legal, tax, and accounting consequences.  Our analyses are not and do not purport to be appraisals of the 
assets, or business of the District or any other entity.   PMA makes no representations as to the actual value which may be received in 
connection with a transaction nor the legal, tax, or accounting effects of consummating a transaction.  PMA  cannot be relied upon to 
provide legal, tax, or accounting advice. You should seek out independent and qualified legal, tax, and accounting advice from outside 
sources. 

• Securities, public finance services and institutional brokerage services are offered through PMA Securities, Inc.  PMA Securities, Inc. is a 
broker-dealer and municipal advisor registered with the SEC and MSRB, and is a member of FINRA and SIPC.  Prudent Man Advisors, 
Inc., an SEC registered investment adviser, provides investment advisory services to local government investment pools.  All other 
products and services are provided by PMA Financial Network, Inc. PMA Financial Network, Inc., PMA Securities, Inc. and Prudent Man 
Advisors (collectively “PMA”) are under common ownership. Securities and public finance services offered through PMA Securities, Inc. are 
available in CA, CO, FL, GA, IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, MN, MO, NE, OH, OK, PA, SD, TX and WI.  This document is not an offer of services 
available in any state other than those listed above, has been prepared for informational and educational purposes and does not constitute 
a solicitation to purchase or sell securities, which may be done only after client suitability is reviewed and determined.  All investments 
mentioned herein may have varying levels of risk, and may not be suitable for every investor.  PMA and its employees do not offer tax or 
legal advice.  Individuals and organizations should consult with their own tax and/or legal advisors before making any tax or legal related 
investment decisions.  Additional information available upon request.  See www.pmanetwork.com for more information.

• ©2013 PMA Financial Network, Inc. All rights reserved. Institutional use only



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:   Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: FY16 Proposed Budget Presentation  
 
 
 
Background 

The Building and Finance Committee has carefully reviewed the finances of the district and 
made decisions regarding educational programming and staffing levels that are reflected in this 
budget. The need to ensure stable funding of the education programs at The Joseph Sears School 
continues to be a priority in financial planning. 
 
A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised on August 20, 2015. This notice stated that a display 
copy of the budget would be made available for review beginning on August 20, 2015, and that a 
Public Hearing will be held at 7:30 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2015. At the Public Hearing, 
the legal requirements will be reviewed and the objects and purposes of the expenditures and 
the revenues necessary to meet the anticipated expenses and liabilities of the district will be 
presented. During the regular meeting that follows the Public Hearing, an action item for 
adoption of the FY16 Budget will be presented for Board approval. The Board of Education will 
be asked to approve the legal budget included in their packet. Following the approval of the 
budget, it will be placed on file with the Cook County Clerk and the Illinois State Board of 
Education as required by law and posted to the District’s web site. 
 
Since the last presentation on August 17, 2015, the Tentative Fiscal Year 2016 Budget has been 
adjusted to reflect the reduction in FTEs from FY15 to FY16.  The following is a summary of the 
FY16 Proposed Final Budget: 

 

 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Revenues'by'Source
Tax$Levy
Other$Local$Revenue
State$Revenue
Federal$Revenue
Other$Financial$Sources
Total'revenues'2'All'Funds

Expenditures'by'Object
Salaries
Benefits$
Purchased$Services
Supplies
Capital$Outlay
Other$Expenses
Total'Expenditures'2'All'Funds

Excess'or'(Deficit)'Revenues
Over'Expenditures

Fund'Balance'As'of'July'1st

Budgeted'Fund'Balance'2'June'30th

*Required)journal)entries)from)the)FY14)Audit)account)for)the)diifference)in)the)FY15)Ending)Fund)Balance

))and)the)FY16)Beginning)Fund)Balance

FY16'Proposed'Final'Budget'

2014A15))))))

Budget

2014A2015)))))))

Unaudited)Actuals

11,938,274.00 11,943,341.48
544,873.00 933,382.04

304,445.00 238,193.20

85,965.00 92,112.01

0.00 0.00

12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73

2014A15))))))

Budget

2014A2015)))))))

Unaudited)Actuals

7,407,791.00 7,288,548.00

1,325,327.00 1,400,474.03

1,294,940.00 1,200,763.90

687,998.00 642,083.79

1,175,825.00 414,273.23

1,271,316.00 1,227,549.05

13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00

,289,640.00. 1,033,336.73

14,751,934.00 14,462,294.00

14,462,294.00 15,495,630.73

*Required)journal)entries)from)the)FY14)Audit)account)for)the)diifference)in)the)FY15)Ending)Fund)Balance

))and)the)FY16)Beginning)Fund)Balance

FY16'Proposed'Final'Budget'

2015A2016)

Tenative)Budget

12,178,918.00

895,342.00

239,500.00

105,000.00

0.00

13,418,760.00

2015A2016)

Tenative)Budget

7,172,208.41

1,463,060.00

1,935,802.09

642,083.79

3,434,544.00

1,043,166.00

15,690,864.29

,2,272,104.29.

16,577,793.49

14,305,689.20

*Required)journal)entries)from)the)FY14)Audit)account)for)the)diifference)in)the)FY15)Ending)Fund)Balance

FY16'Proposed'Final'Budget'

%Increase/Decrease)

from)FY15)to)FY16

1.97%
G4.08%
0.55%
13.99%
0.00%
1.60%

%Increase/Decrease)

from)FY15)to)FY16

G1.60%
4.47%
61.21%
0.00%

729.05%
G15.02%
28.89%

*Required)journal)entries)from)the)FY14)Audit)account)for)the)diifference)in)the)FY15)Ending)Fund)Balance

FY16'Proposed'Final'Budget'

 
 
 
FY16 Proposed Final Budget Assumptions and Notes 
 
The FY16 Proposed Final Budget reflects the following budget assumptions and notes: 
 

Revenue Budget Assumptions and Notes 
 
Tax Levy (+1.97%) 

• Assumes CPI increase and estimated new growth 
 
State Revenue (-4.08%) 

• Assumes a decrease of 4.08% based on the expected reductions in state funding 
 

 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Federal Revenue (+13.99%) 
• Assumes carryover funds from FY15 

 
Other Financial Sources (+/-0%) 

• No other financial sources are anticipated for FY16 
 
 
 

Expenditure Budget Assumptions and Notes 
 

Salaries (-1.60%) 
• The Board of Education negotiated an additional 15 minutes of instruction to the daily 

schedule.  The cost of the regular salary schedule increase, plus the additional 15 minutes 
of instruction is approximately 6.5% for FY16 

• The 6.5% increase is offset by the overall FTE decrease of 12.02 FTE from FY15 to FY16 
• Substitution, Stipend and Timesheet salaries assumes an overall increase of 15% 

o Absences, including sick and personal days, increased by 9% from FY14 to FY15 
o The current KEA Contract increased the curriculum rate from $32.00 to $40.60 

from FY13-FY16, which is approximately a 27% increase. 
o The revised Master Schedule may result in additional supervision and timesheet 

costs. 
o Although we have an accurate total of the Substitution, Stipend and Timesheet 

salaries, it is difficult to track the exact cost of each category in our previous 
system. Going forward, our new financial software will allow us to detail the cost 
of each category and project with more accuracy. 

• Please note, on an annual basis, actual FTEs and salaries may increase or decrease based 
on the use of time-sheeted consultants 

• Budget assumes three (3) FTE placeholders of $75,000 = $225,000 
 
Benefits (+4.47%) 

• Assumes Medical Premium increase of 5% 
• Assumes Dental Increase of 5% 
• Assumes an IMRF increase of 7.0% 
• Reflects $50,000 allotment to cover TRS Audit findings for FY12-FY14 
• Reflects $20,000 allotment to cover potential TRS retirement penalty costs 
• The increase in health insurance premiums and TRS costs are offset by the overall 

decrease in FTE's. 
• Budget assumes three (3) FTE placeholders for newly obtained benefits. 

 
 
Purchased Services (+61.21%) 

• Assumes annual service/maintenance agreement increases of 5% 
• Reflects $300,000 allotment to cover architect fees for potential facility projects 
• Reflects $125,000 allotment to cover new financial software cost and training 
• Reflects $125,000 allotment to cover the potential purchase of a new student identification 

card system 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

• Reflects $25,000 allotment to cover the potential replacement of the District’s website 
• Reflects a $50,000 budget shift from Salaries to Purchased Services for 

coaching/supervision costs. 
o Due to the required employer tax and pension payments, coaching and 

supervision costs associated with District employees are approximately 30% 
higher than contracted employees.  Historically we have budgeted for all 
coaching stipends in the salaries budget. However, based on the shift of the last 
two years, I have moved this allotment from salaries to purchased services for 
FY16. 

• Budget assumes $50,000 placeholder for unplanned, but necessary Purchased Services 
costs 

 
 
Supplies (+/-0%) 

• Assumes a flat budget – no increase in the supplies 
 
Capital Outlay (+4.89% without facility project costs) 

• Reflects $3,000,000 allotment to cover potential facility projects. 
o Air conditioning and an improved lunchroom solution have been identified as 

priority projects.  The $3,000,000 allotment will cover estimated costs incurred in 
FY16. This will not cover the entire cost of the projects.  

 
Other Expenses (-15.02%) 

• Reflects a decrease in out of placement tuition students. 
 
Overview 

You will notice the budget reflects an overall deficit of $2.2M.  This is a planned deficit to cover 
the costs for the District’s priority facility projects. Although the estimated facility project costs 
for FY16 is approximately $3.3M, the deficit is offset by the significant decrease in full-time 
equivalents (FTE’s).  Through detailed educational planning, program changes and the 
administrative restructure, the District was able to reduce the overall personal count by 
approximately 12 FTE’s.  The following table compares the District’s FY15 FTE’s to FY16: 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Certified Staff - Non Tenured
Certified Staff - Tenured
Certified Staff - Annuitants (retired)
Total Certified Instructional

Total Non-Certified Instructional

Total Non-Certified Support 

Administrators

Total Administrator

Total Base Salaries

FY15 FTE FY15 Base Salary FY16 FTE FY16 Base Salary
26.05 $1,582,950.50 21.35 $1,415,181.76
40.13 $3,502,128.00 44.00 $3,983,482.44
2.20 $221,456.91 0.55 $57,097.13

68.38 $5,306,535.41 65.90 $5,455,761.33

18.00 $374,514.40 10.65 $231,568.14

8.25 $424,095.11 9.00 $472,722.94

1.00 $140,000.00 1.00 $144,200.00
1.00 $110,000.00 1.00 $113,300.00
1.00 $178,500.00 1.00 $185,000.00
1.00 $259,550.04
4.00 $688,050.04 3.00 $442,500.00

98.63 6,793,194.96       88.55 $6,602,552.41

Substitute/Stipend/Timesheet

Grand Total Salaries

$495,353.04 $569,656.00

$7,288,548.00 $7,172,208.41  
 
 
This table also compares the FY16 salary costs to the prior year.  As stated in the assumptions 
and notes, the overall salaries are estimated to decrease by 1.60%.  The following table highlights 
the specific changes within the administrative restructure: 
 

Administrators FY15/FTE FY15/Base/Salary *FY15/Childcare/Expenses *FY15/Travel/Allowance *FY15/Annuity *FY15/Total/Compensation
!!Principal 1.00 $140,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $140,000.00
!!Director!of!Student!Services 1.00 $110,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $110,000.00
!!Chief!School!Business!Official 1.00 $178,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $178,500.00
!!Superintendent 1.00 $259,550.04 $17,600.00 $4,800.00 $5,000.00 $286,950.04
Total/Administrator/Compensation 4.00 $688,050.04 $17,600.00 $4,800.00 $5,000.00 $715,450.04

*Compensation,falls,under,Purchased,Services,,not,Salaries

Administrators FY16/FTE FY16/Base/Salary *FY16/Childcare/Expenses *FY16/Travel/Allowance *FY16/Annuity *FY16/Total/Compensation FY16/Increase/from/FY15
!!Principal 1.00 $144,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $144,200.00 3.00%
!!Director!of!Student!Services 1.00 $113,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $113,300.00 3.00%
!!Chief!School!Business!Official 0.50 $182,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $182,000.00 1.96%
!!Superintendent 0.50 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 1.65%
Total!Administrator!Compensation 3.00 $442,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $442,500.00

Additional/Teacher/Support/Staff FY16/FTE FY16/Base/Salary *FY16/Childcare/Expenses *FY16/Travel/Allowance *FY16/Annuity *FY16/Total/Compensation FY16/Increase/from/FY15
!!Instructional!Facilitator 0.70 $48,120.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,120.10 New!Position
!!Communications!Coordinator 1.00 $50,375.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,375.00 New!Position
Total!Additional!Teacher/Support 1.70 $98,495.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,495.10

Total/Cost/of/Administrative/Restructure 4.70 $540,995.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $540,995.10

Total/Savings/from/the/Administrative/Restructure $174,454.94 N24.38%

Administrative/Restructure/Cost/Analysis

 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Summary 

The overall decrease in FTE’s has a significant impact on the fiscal future of the District.  With 
this decrease, the District is able to sustain a balanced operating budget, while also maintaining a 
fund balance to address facility projects.   
 
The Administration believes this is a sound representation of the financial position of the District 
and therefore recommends your favorable approval of the FY16 Proposed Final Budget. 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education  
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 

From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Principal’s Report 
 
Student Enrollment 
 
Student enrollment continues to rise. We have increased our numbers by 5 students since the 
August Board meeting. In Kindergarten, we have highlighted the enrollment number in green. 
We have a new family entering Sears in the month of October. Our numbers currently put us at 
490 students.   
 
Master Schedule 
 
The Master Schedule appears to be functioning well. Students have begun to roll into their 
routine and they are able to navigate between classes and the building with ease. Teachers that 
shifted to 60 minutes like the unit of time. Math teachers have reported that they are able to dive 
into the mathematical practices, exercise wait time and create space for more questions. Best 
practice in math from Marilyn Burns and Jo Boaler emphasize the significance of these 
opportunities and the gains of Math Talk integrated into instruction. Science teachers have 
expressed how much they are able to do and the increase in quality of their labs with the 
additional instructional time. 
 
The transition to lunch works well. Students are having enough time to eat and ample time to 
relax and play. Students gave positive feedback in the beginning with some expressing the 
challenge of change. This week they are becoming increasing positive about the day. We will 
administer our first student survey in late October.  

 
There are some challenges with the 6th grade schedule because of the small cohort size and our 
current practice of grouping students into math classes.  We are working to balance numbers 
and establish classes that create an excellent learning environment. Students in all blocks are 
with a group of students for 120 minutes for their Math/English classes. Grade levels with even 
cohorts mix up students in their Social Studies/Science/Special Block. We are working on 
possible options for the schedule and some movement, but we are giving the schedule an 
opportunity to settle in and both teachers and students the chance to adjust to new grade levels, 
new schedules and changes in routine. 

 
We have completed our initial Advisory transition back to school.  Band, orchestra, and choir 
were officially offered during the school day and reported outstanding numbers. The rooms and 
risers were filled. Enrichment is on a current rotation to assist students in preparing for each 
content area and as pre-tests, formative assessments and MAP are analyzed, the next phase of 
enrichment will begin the first week of October. 

 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
 
New Trier Freshman Survey 
 

a. In English Language Arts for both reading and writing we are 10% higher than 
the township average of students that feel prepared for their courses making 
92.1% of Sears Freshmen feeling well prepared and adequately prepared in 
reading (81.8% avg.). In writing, our student numbers were 4% higher in writing. 

b. In Social Studies, 85% of our students reported that they felt prepared or 
adequately prepared compared to 78% of the freshman class. 

c. World Language students from Sears felt 11% more prepared than the rest of their 
classmates. 

d. We were in line with the freshman average in mathematics. 
e. In Science, our numbers did not meet the district average.  However, we did 

receive an email from a current freshman family whose child is in Level 4 Biology.  
The family member stated that her son was very complimentary of his 
preparation and in fact reported that the 3 highest scores on the recent test all 
came from Sears’ science students. 

f. Students and level assignments:  In English, 15% of our students take classes in a 
level that they were not placed. Eighty-four percent of these students took classes 
at a level higher than where they were placed. This number is 20% more students 
pushing up a level than the township average. We have a number on par with the 
district in number of students shifting levels in the other content areas. 

 



H:\2015-2016\Enrollment Report          
          
  09-11-15       

 
 

ENROLLMENT REPORT 2015-2016 
September 11, 2015 

  

 Historical Comparison  

 
 

Grade 

Beginning 
2013-2014 

School Year 
(08-28-13) 

Beginning 
2014-2015 

School Year 
(08-18-14) 

Enrollment 
Close of 

School Year 
(2014-2015) 

Enrollment  for 
2015-2016 

as of  
09-11-15 

Kasarda 
December 2014 

Projections 
2015-2016 

 

Fall 2015 
Census Numbers 

 

JK 7 12 13 10 NA 21 

K 43 43 44 38 41/46/50 24 

1 50 46 45 (46)* 44 43/45/47 27 

2 49 51 51 51 (52)* 45/47/49 39 

3 66 50 52 51 48/50/52 45 

4 47 67 65 (66)* 56 47/49/51 43 

5 67 42 42 68  63/65/67 62 

6 60  67 68 42 (43)* 40/42/44 52 

7 75 56 56 71 66/68/70 56 

8 51 74* 71 (73)* 57 55/55/57 69 

Total 518 508 507 (511)* 488 (490)* 448/467/487 438 

 

 
2015-2016 ENROLLMENT SUMMARY WITH CLASS SECTIONS 

 

School JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total 

The Joseph Sears School 10 

 

  38 

 

44 51 51 56 68 42  71 57 488 

No. of Current Sections 

No. Advisory Sections 

1 2 3 3 3 3 4 

4 5 5 

19 

14 

 
 
 

* Includes alternate student placement Green Font = Enrollment number reflects 1 additional student who will be enrolling October 5, 2015 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
To:   Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 

From:  Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services  
 
Date:   September 21, 2015 
 
RE:   Director of Student Services’ Report 
 
 
 
Gifted/Academically Advanced Update 
We are on track to meet the October 31, 2015 benchmark to provide a written summary of gifted 
and advanced learner services, including the process for student identification, and the 
development of an implementation plan. The December 31, 2015 target includes professional 
development recommendations, and we will be ahead of schedule on this item. Liz Gordon and I 
have begun discussions and modeling with teams related to differentiating content, process, and 
product. Professional development topics include but are not limited to: meeting the needs of 
gifted/advanced learners, student choice, multi-modalities, and flexible groupings/tiered 
assignments. 
 
While I will have a comprehensive written summary for the Board in October, I would like to 
highlight some examples of team problem solving and providing advanced curriculum 
opportunities for students. I have been attending weekly grade level team meetings, which focus 
on connecting data, teaching, and learning. Mrs. Gordon has also been meeting with teams to 
extend curriculum. I have included an example of how the traditional packet for Fantastic Mr. 
Fox in fourth grade, has been enhanced through a RAFT (Role, Audience, Format, Topic) 
activity. Similarly, the traditional reading log has been replaced with an independent reading 
choice board by genre, and includes a reader/response journal. Spelling tasks have been 
enhanced by higher-level vocabulary activities. We also want to ensure the whole child is taken 
into account and review multiple sources of data. Several teams have been utilizing student 
interest inventories, goal setting activities, and multiple intelligences/learning strategies 
surveys. Examples have been included for your review.  
 
In the area of mathematics, we are guided by the CogAT and MAP matrix, and incorporate data 
from grade level pre-assessment, classroom performance, and parent input. We align content 
and resources to student need. Content acceleration varies from cohort to cohort and is guided 
by data. We want to ensure that all concepts from the current grade level are mastered, and 
students are exposed to all foundational skills, as advanced curriculum is introduced.  
 
I look forward to providing the Board, and the community, with a full written plan and 
presentation soon.  
 
 



Genre Choice Board 

Nonfiction Historical Fiction Fantasy  Realistic Fiction Mystery 

Create an informational 
poster for the book. Your 
poster should contain 
pictures and 3-5 facts 
taken from the book. 

Make an illustrated 
timeline that lists all the 
important events in the 
book. Remember 
timelines include dates 
and events. 

A sequel is another story 
written after the first story. 
Write a short, 1-2 page 
sequel to the book. Include 
some illustrations too. 

Create a plot chart for the 
book. Using the plot chart, 
retell a key event in the 
book from the perspective 
of another character in a 
1-2 page story 

Create a story map for the 
book by folding your paper 
into 4 equal sections. The 
map should include the 
setting, characters, 
problem, and solution. Add 
an illustration to each 
section. 

Give 3-5 facts you learned 
from the book. Given 2 
opinions you have about 
the topic and support them 
using text evidence. What 
is 1 questions you still 
have about the topic? 

Create a movie poster 
for the book. Include 5-7 
visual details that reflect 
events in the book. On 
the back of your poster, 
record quotes that 
reflect these details and 
write 1-2 sentences 
explaining why these 
details are important. 

What aspects of the book 
make it part of the fantasy 
genre? Create a foldable 
book that lists these 
elements of the fantasy 
genre. On each page include 
an illustration and a 2-3 
sentence description of each 
element. 

Write a letter to the author 
of the book. What 
questions would you like to 
ask them? How does the 
book relate to your life? 

You are going to interview 
one character from the 
book. Write 5 questions 
you would ask them. You 
cannot ask yes or no 
questions. Then, write the 
answers just like the 
character would answer 
them. 

List all the nonfiction text 
features used in the book. 
Give an example of how 
one of the text features 
helped you as a reader. 

Think of one text-to-self 
connection you made. 
Write a paragraph 
comparing and 
contrasting the text to 
your life. 

Create a map of the fictional 
world where the story takes 
place. Create a map key 
using quotes from the book. 

Draw a draw a mind map 
for the main character of 
the book. Include 3-5 
quotes from the book 
within the mind map that 
reflect the character’s 
perspective. 

Pretend one of the 
characters is giving an 
eyewitness account of the 
crime or problem in the 
story in a court of law. 
Create a transcript of 
character’s testimony to 
the court.  

 



RAFT  Rubric 

 Expert Scholar Beginner 

Required 
Elements 

● Fulfills all aspects of the RAFT 
format. 

● Includes all necessary 
references (at least 3) to the text. 

● Fulfills some aspects of the RAFT 
format. 

● Includes 2-3 references to the 
text. 

● Some aspects of the 
RAFT are missing or 
incomplete. 

● Includes few references 
to the text. 

 Content The content of the product is 
● entirely accurate. 
● detail-rich. 
● relevant to the goal. 

 

The content contains 1-2 of the following: 
● minor errors. 
● patchy details. 
● some irrelevant information. 

The content falls short regarding 
● accuracy. 
● sufficient detail. 
● relevance of information. 

Product 
Quality 

● The final product is of 
professional quality and for 
distribution. 

● The information is well 
organized, clearly displayed, and 
easy to read and understand. 

● The structure of the product 
purposefully and clearly 
communicates information. 

● 1-2 elements could be improved 
● It is sometimes difficult to 

understand the information. 
● The structure helped 

communicate most of the main 
points. 

● The product needs a lot 
of additional work. 

● There are organizational 
problems that interfere 
with the meaning. 

● The structure does not 
communicate main points 
or understanding. 

 
 

 



 

 

Name:___________________ 
 

Student Learning Interest Inventory 

Interest Areas 

Directions: Circle your interest level for each area.  
1= very interested, 2 = a little interested, 3 = not interested 
         VI  LI  NI 

1. Visual Arts          1  2  3 
2. Writing & Literature     1  2  3 
3. Technology      1  2  3 
4. Science & Nature     1  2  3 
5. Mathematics      1  2  3 
6. Sports        1  2  3 
7. History and Cultures     1  2  3 
8. Music       1  2  3 
9. Theatre and Film     1  2  3 

 

I am extremely interested in ___________________________________ 

________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________. 
 
How I Learn Best 

Directions: Put these in order from 1 (most favorite) to 6 (least 
favorite). 

_______  Oral (Speeches and Drama)      

_______  Written 

_______  Designing Displays or Models 

_______  Artistic 

_______  Abstract (Idea, Plans, Theories) 

_______  Service in the Community 
 
Grouping Preference  
Directions: Put these in order from 1 (most favorite) to 3 (least 
favorite). 
_______ with a partner _______ on my own  _______in a group 

 



 

Teacher 
Use  
Only 

M T W TH F 

     

 

5th Grade Student Goal Setting 
 

My strengths are... 

● _____________________________ 

● _____________________________ 

● _____________________________ 
 

What I think I need to work on is... 

● _____________________________ 

● _____________________________ 

● _____________________________ 
 

My academic goal is to... 

__________________________________________________. 
 

To achieve my academic goal, I will take the following steps: 
 

1. _______________________________________________ 

2. _______________________________________________ 
 

My social-emotional goal is to.... 

__________________________________________________. 
 
To achieve my social-emotional goal, I will take the following 
steps: 
 

1. _______________________________________________ 
2. _______________________________________________ 

 
 



 

Teacher 
Use  
Only 

M T W TH F 

     

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RAFT Choices for “Fantastic Mr. Fox” 
 

 R= Role A= Audience F= Format T = Topic 

1 poet readers limerick Page 14 describes the limerick that the children sing about the 
farmers.  

● What rhyme scheme does it follow?  
● Write your own limerick.  
● Underneath your limerick, write a paragraph explaining how 

your limerick connects to the plot and cite text evidence. 

2 movie 
reviewer 

newspaper 
readers 

article Watch the movie, “The Fantastic Mr. Fox.” 
●  Compare and contrast the book and movie.  
● What aspects of the plot or characterization were the same 

or different? 
● Did you prefer the book or the movie? Why? 

3 Rat readers short story Retell the story from the point of view of Rat in Bean’s Secret Cider 
Cellar. 

4 museum 
curator 

visitors to 
museum 

exhibit Make a plan for a museum exhibit of his life addressing the 
questions: How did his life’s events influence the stories he wrote? 

● Read the article about Roald Dahl’s life: 
http://www.roalddahlfans.com/teachers/dahl.php 

● What artifacts (real or imaginary)  would you include in 
each display case? 

● Write an informational paragraph for each stage of his life. 

5 farmer foxes letter Write a letter from a farmer of your choice in order to convince the 
foxes to stay off his land. Incorporate text evidence.  

 
 
 
 



What are my Learning Strengths? 
Research shows that all human beings have at least eight different types of intelligence. Depending on your 
background and age, some intelligences are more developed than others. This activity will help you find out 
what your strengths are. Knowing this, you can work to strengthen the other intelligences that you do not use as 
often. 

Verbal/Linguistic Intelligence 
Logical/Mathematical 

Intelligence 
___ I enjoy telling stories and jokes 
___ I have a good memory for trivia 
___ I enjoy word games (e.g. Scrabble & puzzles) 
___ I read books just for fun 
___ I am a good speller (most of the time) 
___ In an argument I tend to use put-downs or 

sarcasm 
___ I like talking and writing about my ideas 
___ If I have to memorize something I create a 

rhyme or saying to help me remember 
___ If something breaks and won't work, I read the 

instruction book first 
___ For a group presentation I prefer to do the 

writing and library research 
 

___ I really enjoy my math class 
___ I like logical math puzzles or brain teasers 
___ I find solving math problems to be fun 
___ If I have to memorize something I tend to 

place events in a logical order 
___ I like to find out how things work 
___ I enjoy computer and any math games 
___ I love playing chess, checkers or Monopoly 
___ In an argument, I try to find a fair and logical 

solution 
___ If something breaks and won't work, I look at 

the pieces and try to figure out how it works 
___ For a group presentation I prefer to create the 

charts and graphs 
 

Visual/Spatial Intelligence Bodily/Kinesthetic Intelligence 
___ I prefer a map to written directions 
___ I daydream a lot 
___ I enjoy hobbies such as photography 
___ I like to draw and create 
___ If I have to memorize something I draw a 

diagram to help me remember 
___ I like to doodle on paper whenever I can 
___ In a magazine, I prefer looking at the pictures 

rather than reading the text 
___ In an argument I try to keep my distance, keep 

silent or visualize some solution 
___ If something breaks and won't work I tend to 

study the diagram of how it works 
___ For a group presentation I prefer to draw all the 

pictures 
 

___ My favorite class is gym since I like sports 
___ I enjoy activities such as woodworking, 

sewing and building models 
___ When looking at things, I like touching them 
___ I have trouble sitting still for any length of 

time 
___ I use a lot of body movements when talking 
___ If I have to memorize something I write it out 

a number of times until I know it 
___ I tend to tap my fingers or play with my pencil 

during class 
___ In a argument I tend to strike out and hit or 

run away 
___ If something breaks and won't work I tend to 

play with the pieces to try to fit them together 
___ For a group presentation I prefer to move the 

props around, hold things up or build a model 
 

Musical/Rhythmic Intelligence Interpersonal Intelligence 
___ I enjoy listening to CD's and the radio 
___ I tend to hum to myself when working 
___ I like to sing 
___ I play a musical instrument quite well 
___ I like to have music playing when doing 

homework or studying 
___ If I have to memorize something I try to create a 

___ I get along well with others 
___ I like to belong to clubs and organizations 
___ I have several very close friends 
___ I like helping teach other students 
___ I like working with others in groups 
___ Friends ask my advice because I seem to be a 

natural leader 



rhyme about the event 
___ I an argument I tend to shout or punch or move 

in some sort of rhythm 
___ I can remember the melodies of many songs 
___ If something breaks and won't work I tend to tap 

my fingers to a beat while I figure it out 
___ For a group presentation I prefer to put new 

words to a popular tune or use music  
 

___ If I have to memorize something I ask 
someone to quiz me to see if I know it 

___ In an argument I tend ask a friend or some 
person in authority for help 

___ If something breaks and won't work I try to 
find someone who can help me 

___ For a group presentation I like to help 
organize the group's efforts 

 

Intrapersonal Intelligence Naturalist Intelligence 
___ I like to work alone without anyone bothering 

me 
___ I like to keep a diary 
___ I like myself (most of the time) 
___ I don't like crowds 
___ I know what I am good at and what I am weak at 
___ I find that I am strong-willed, independent and 

don't follow the crowd 
___ If I have to memorize something I tend to close 

my eyes and feel the situation 
___ In an argument I will usually walk away until I 

calm down 
___ If something breaks and won't work, I wonder if 

it's worth fixing up 
___ For a group presentation I like to contribute 

something that is uniquely mine, often based on 
how I feel  

 

___ I am keenly aware of my surroundings and of 
what goes on around me 

___ I love to go walking in the woods and looking 
at the trees and flowers 

___ I enjoy gardening 
___ I like to collect things (e.g., rocks, sports 

cards, stamps, etc) 
___ As an adult, I think I would like to get away 

from the city and enjoy nature 
___ If I have to memorize something, I tend to 

organize it into categories 
___ I enjoy learning the names of living things in 

our environment, such as flowers and trees 
___ In an argument I tend to compare my 

opponent to someone or something I have 
read or heard about and react accordingly 

___ If something breaks down, I look around me 
to try and see what I can find to fix the 
problem 

___ For a group presentation I prefer to organize 
and classify the information into categories so 
it makes sense 

 

TOTAL SCORE 
_______ Verbal/Linguistic 
_______ Logical/Mathematical 
_______ Visual/Spatial 
_______ Bodily/Kinesthetic 
 

_______ Musical/Rhythmic 
_______ Interpersonal 
_______ Intrapersonal 
_______ Naturalist 
 

Greg Gay - Adapted by J. Ivanco, 1998 

	
  



	Animals

	Sports

	Nature

	Dancing

	Art/Drawing

	Writing

	Singing

	Acting/Theatre

	Bike riding

	Computers

	Cooking

	Board games

	Video games

	Photography

	Science

	Mechanics

	Construction

	Church

	Watching TV/movies

	Travel

	School

	Swimming

	Music

	Other: ___________

	 _________________

Favorite movie of all time: Favorite band or 
type of music:

Favorite TV show:

Favorite video games include:

Your favorites list

1 2

3

Name:

List 3 things you like to do when you’re not in school:

Mark 5  you love:

©2010 Smekens Education Solutions, Inc.   •   www.SmekensEducation.com  •   Grades 3-5: Reader Interest Inventory   1



Mystery/Suspense	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Fantasy	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Action/Adventure	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

How-to books	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Biography	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Poetry	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Science fiction	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Historical fiction	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Realistic fiction	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

Nonfiction/Informational	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

	Basketball

	Football

	Soccer

	Fishing

	Baseball

	Softball

	Skiing

	Motor racing

	Hockey

	Skateboarding

	Bicycling

	Wrestling

	Volleyball

	Tennis

	Dancing

	Swimming

	Cheerleading

	Gymnastics

	Ice skating

	Musical instruments

	Mini golf

	Others: __________

	 _________________

	 _________________

Mark your  
favorite activities:

5 important people in your life: 5 important things in your life:

Who are your heroes (real people or fantasy characters)?

Your favorites list

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

	 Hate it!	 It’s OK.	 Love it!

Circle a number for each type of reading:
	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5

©2010 Smekens Education Solutions, Inc.   •   www.SmekensEducation.com  •   Grades 3-5: Reader Interest Inventory   2

Not my fav. Like it.



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Follow Up Discussion and Potential Approval of Deerfield Public Schools 109 

Withdrawal from NSSED 
 
 
 
Deerfield Public School 109 (DPS109) will now pursue a non-consensual withdrawal based upon 
the Township High School District 113 Board No vote.  Currently, in addition to DPS109, the 
following member district Boards of Education have voted yes: Glencoe SD35, Lake Forest High 
School District 115, and North Shore School District 112.  
 
DPS109 is requesting that all districts vote by the October board meeting.  For additional 
information, attached are the following memos that were shared at the August Board meeting. 
 

• Follow up memo from Tim Thomas, Superintendent at NSSED 
• PowerPoint presentation from DPS109 reviewing their Special Education Program  

 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
August 17, 2015, Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 
 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

THE 17TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2015 
 
The meeting was called to order by President Scott Wallace at 6:03 p.m. Upon Roll Call, the following 
board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. Timothy 
Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Stacey Van Metre. Mrs. Danielle Boros was 
absent. 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace entertained a motion to go into Closed Session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 
MATTERS, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL 
PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY 
 
Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre moved, seconded by Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson, to go into Closed Session at 6:05 p.m. to 
consider Information Regarding Specific Employee Matters, Collective Bargaining, Pending or Probable Litigation 
and Purchase or Lease of Real Property for use of the Public Body. 
 
Roll Call: 

Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson 
Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre 

Mrs. Danielle Boros 
Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 

 
The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent. 
        
The Board returned to Open Session at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Upon Roll Call at 7:37 p.m., the following board members answered as being present:  Mr. Scott Wallace, 
Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. Timothy Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, Mrs. Donna 
Keller and Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre. 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO  
Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services;  
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
August 17, 2015, Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Community Members: Mrs. Katie Nahrwold 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace invited public comment. A community member commented that the Outdoor Garden 
is off to a great start. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests – Dr. LeRoy told the Board that the District received four 
FOIA requests related to enrollment from Mrs. Alison Winslow. Dr. LeRoy responded to all of the 
requests in a timely fashion. 
 
Report from the Superintendent – Dr. LeRoy provided an update on the crossing guard stationed in the 
500 block of Kenilworth. Dr. LeRoy said that after an analysis of the crossing guard situation conducted 
by the Kenilworth Police Department, the intersection has been determined to be safe and the District 
will no longer provide a crossing guard there. The intersection will continue to be monitored. 
 
Dr. LeRoy also updated the Board as to the new traffic patterns in Kenilworth as a result of construction 
at New Trier HS. Before the start of the current New Trier school year, No Thru Traffic to Winnetka Ave. 
signs will be added for northbound traffic on Essex Rd. at Kenilworth Ave. and Warwick Rd. at 
Kenilworth Ave. Do Not Enter School Days 7:30 to 8:30 a.m. signs will be added for northbound traffic on 
Essex Rd. at Cumberland Ave., Warwick Rd. at Cumberland Ave. and Abbotsford Rd. at Ivy Ct. These 
signs were added to improve the flow of traffic through the village. 
 
Dr. LeRoy also informed the Board of two scheduled meet and greet sessions for the community: Cookies 
and Conversation and Stay and Play. The two sessions are scheduled to take place on Aug 20 and they will 
provide the community a chance to informally talk with the Administrative Leadership Team. 
 
Report from the Chief School Business Officer – Dr. LeRoy discussed a payment made to former 
superintendent Dr. Kelley Kalinich for 40 days of unused vacation. Dr. LeRoy said that going forward, 
administrators are contractually allowed to carry over earned unused vacation days from one year to the 
next. Dr. LeRoy told the Board that vacation days couldn’t be transferred across multiple years. 
 
Dr. LeRoy discussed the District’s landscape services. Mr. Wallace said there is an effort to consolidate 
vendors for landscaping in the village in order to get a better rate. Dr. LeRoy said she has looked into 
that and found that the District’s rates for landscape services are different from neighboring entities. Dr. 
LeRoy said she will perform an analysis to determine what is best for the district going forward. 
 
Dr. LeRoy discussed the format of the monthly accounts payable. She said that the District’s new 
financial software would be able to provide an analysis of accounts payable. Accounts payable analysis 
is labor intensive under the current system. Dr. LeRoy recommended the Board receive accounts payable 
analyses on a quarterly basis. 
 
Dr. LeRoy presented a copy of the tentative FY 16 budget to the Board for review. Dr. LeRoy provided 
an overview of the budget assumptions for the Board and highlighted some of the purchased services 
that the District expects to make during the upcoming fiscal year. Dr. LeRoy also explained that she 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
August 17, 2015, Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 
 

allocated $3.3 million for FY 16 for capital projects. Dr. LeRoy said the money allocated for capital 
expenses contributes to the $2.6 million deficit shown in FY 16.  
 
Board members asked Dr. LeRoy to clarify the assumptions that went into building the budget. Mrs. 
Nelson asked Dr. LeRoy to show specifically the administrator salaries, teacher salaries and support staff 
salaries in the budget. The Board asked Dr. LeRoy to elaborate on where there are areas for cushion in 
the budget. The Board agreed that the budget assumptions would be further discussed at the next 
Building and Finance Committee Meeting. 
 
Dr. LeRoy noted that the burden of TRS costs would be shifting from the state to individual districts in 
the near future. The District would be asked to absorb about 20 percent of TRS costs over a set period of 
time. She said the District is aware of this and will plan accordingly once the exact numbers are finalized. 
 
Report from the Principal -  Mrs. Wallace said enrollment numbers are relatively strong compared to 
neighboring schools in the township. Projected enrollment stands at about 490 students.  
 
Mrs. Wallace discussed progress made in varying areas of curriculum development. She noted that 
teachers from several core content areas are making progress in defining their curriculum, notably 
Science, English/Language Arts and Social Studies.  
 
Mrs. Wallace gave an update on Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) testing and outlined how the 
data will be used in the school. She said MAP testing will be used to chart academic growth by allowing 
students to monitor their progress over time. She said administrators will use the data to assist in setting 
academic goals and in reflecting on the teaching and learning process. 
 
Report from the Director of Student Services -  Ms. Jones provided an update on the Deerfield Public 
School District’s decision to withdraw from NSSED. She explained that Deerfield’s will need to follow 
different procedures to opt out of NSSED should neighboring districts vote determine a consensual or 
non-consensual process. 
 
Ms. Jones also discussed the creation of a matrix which will be used to analyze scores from various 
standardized tests. Ms. Jones said she began reaching out to parents of the students that the matrix 
identified as gifted. Mrs. Liz Gordon and Ms. Jones are working together to develop a professional 
development proposal that highlights characteristics of gifted students. The plan will also include 
differentiation strategies to meet the needs of students on all ends of the learning spectrum. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace asked if there were any questions regarding the Consent Agenda. There being no 
questions or discussion, Mr. Wallace asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
 
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include approval for: Minutes of the July 14, 
2015 Regular Meeting and Closed Session; Approval of Investment Reports for June and July 2015; Ratification of 
Accounts Payable for June 16, 2015 to July 30, 2015; Approval of Accounts Payable for July 31, 2015 to August 
17, 2015; Authorization to Destroy Closed Session Recording for March 2014; Approval of Family Medical Leave 
Request; and Acceptance of Employee Resignation from Instructional Assistant. The motion was seconded by Mrs. 
Mindy Kelly. 
 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
August 17, 2015, Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Roll Call: 
Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson 
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 
Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 

 
The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Review of Proposed Strategic Plan Objectives  - This item was tabled and postponed for discussion 
until the next Board meeting. 
 
Review of Administrator Goals  
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded by Mr. Tim Kollar, to approve 2015-2016 Administrator Goals pending a 
minor grammatical correction. 
 
The motion carried on all yeses. 
 
Discussion of Community Forums – Mrs. Nelson raised the idea of hosting community forums as a 
Board. Mrs. Nelson said that she would like to do a forum specifically for teachers as this is something 
that has never been done in the recent past. The Board discussed ways to publicize community forums 
for community members who do not have children in the District. Mr. Wallace suggested the District 
hold a “State of the District” address in late fall and a second forum in the second half. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Potential Action to Approve Vicki Saxton as a 1.0 FTE Social Studies Teacher and Potential Action to 
Approve Recommendations to hire Instructional Assistants  
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved, seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller, to approve the hiring of Vicki Saxton as a 1.0 FTE 
Social Studies Teacher the approval of recommendations to hire Instructional Assistants 
 
Roll Call: 

Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson 
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 
Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 

 
The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0. 
 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
August 17, 2015, Regular Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Kenilworth Education Association Teacher Evaluation 
Instrument 
 Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved, seconded by Mr. Scott Wallace, to approve the Kenilworth Education Association 
Teacher Evaluation Instrument. 
 
The motion carried on all yeses. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was no other business. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Wallace invited public comment. There was none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business Mr. Wallace entertained a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre moved, seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller, to adjourn the meeting at 9:52 p.m. 
 
The motion carried with all yeses. 
 
Attest for Distribution: ___________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary    

 
Approved: ____________________________________ 

           Scott Wallace, President 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary 



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  August	
  2015

9/18/15

Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  July	
  1,	
  2015
Investment	
  Balance 12,065,422.12
Bank	
  Balance 3,675,091.43

Revenues	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance %	
  Received

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

10 Education	
   9,869,872.00 10,076,447.30 10,191,090.00 6,124,895.65 39.90% 4,066,194.35
20 Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,518,939.00 1,603,097.51 1,624,932.00 989,977.53 39.08% 634,954.47
30 Debt	
  Service	
   990,048.00 1,026,958.02 1,056,069.00 589,841.91 44.15% 466,227.09
40 Transportation 42,870.00 12,454.67 12,315.00 7,150.55 41.94% 5,164.45
50 IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 271,357.00 269,721.28 276,872.00 170,925.87 38.27% 105,946.13
60 Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 Working	
  Cash 14,615.00 80,898.37 85,000.00 72,892.27 14.24% 12,107.73
80 Tort	
  Fund 165,856.00 137,451.58 172,482.00 99,485.68 42.32% 72,996.32
90 Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total	
  Revenue	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 8,055,169.46 39.97% 5,363,590.54

Expenditures	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance %	
  Expended

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

10 Education	
   9,840,276.00 9,806,168.71 9,928,551.29 9,258,889.04 6.74% 669,662.25
20 Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,796,445.00 1,029,580.88 1,072,142.00 986,717.28 7.97% 85,424.72
30 Debt	
  Service	
   1,028,500.00 991,808.14 1,021,562.00 1,021,562.00 0.00% 0.00
40 Transportation 52,015.00 23,559.73 24,738.00 24,738.00 0.00% 0.00
50 IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 289,286.00 237,214.75 254,243.00 238,554.39 6.17% 15,688.61
60 Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 3,300,000.00 3,300,000.00 0.00% 0.00
70 Working	
  Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
80 Tort	
  Fund 156,676.00 85,359.79 89,628.00 89,628.00 0.00% 0.00
90 Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 14,920,088.71 4.91% 770,775.58

Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  August	
  31,	
  2015 20,333,328.51



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  August	
  2015

9/18/15

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance %	
  Received

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Revenues	
  by	
  Source
Tax	
  Levy 11,938,274.00 11,943,341.48 12,178,918.00 6,988,789.26 42.62% 5,190,128.74 	
  
Other	
  Local	
  Revenue 544,873.00 933,382.04 895,342.00 788,128.77 11.97% 107,213.23
State	
  Revenue 304,445.00 238,193.20 239,500.00 188,070.43 21.47% 51,429.57
Federal	
  Revenue 85,965.00 92,112.01 105,000.00 90,181.00 14.11% 14,819.00
Other	
  Financial	
  Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
Total	
  revenues	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 8,055,169.46 39.97% 5,363,590.54

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance %	
  Expended

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Expenditures	
  by	
  Object
Salaries 7,407,791.00 7,288,548.00 7,172,208.41 6,746,815.32 5.93% 425,393.09
Benefits	
   1,325,327.00 1,400,474.03 1,463,060.00 1,388,581.26 5.09% 74,478.74
Purchased	
  Services 1,294,940.00 1,200,763.90 1,935,802.09 1,797,974.73 7.12% 137,827.36
Supplies 687,998.00 642,083.79 642,083.79 515,436.15 19.72% 126,647.64
Capital	
  Outlay 1,175,825.00 414,273.23 3,434,544.00 3,434,544.00 0.00% 0.00
Other	
  Expenses 1,271,316.00 1,227,549.05 1,043,166.00 1,036,737.25 0.62% 6,428.75
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 14,920,088.71 4.91% 770,775.58

Excess	
  or	
  (Deficit)	
  Revenues -­‐289,640.00	
   1,033,336.73 -­‐2,272,104.29	
  
Over	
  Expenditures

Fund	
  Balance	
  As	
  of	
  July	
  1st 14,751,934.00 14,462,294.00 15,740,513.55

Budgeted	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  -­‐	
  June	
  30th 14,462,294.00 15,495,630.73 13,468,409.26



Summary Accounts Payable August 18th to September 21st 2015

10.  Educational Fund Accounts Payable $162,055.50

20. Operations & Maint Fund Accounts Payable $44,328.82

30.  Bond & Interest Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

40.  Transportation Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

50.  Municipal Retirement Fund $0.00

60. Site & Construction Accounts Payable $0.00

70.  Working Cash Fund Transfer of Interest $0.00

80. Tort Fund Accounts Payable $155.63

90.  Life Safety Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

Total A/P Disbursements $206,539.95

A/P Check Numbers 132754-132872
Direct A/P Deposit 1851-1852
Void Check Numbers

10. Educational Fund Payroll $520,677.52

20. Operations & Maint Fund Payroll $7,531.22

50.  Municipal Retirement Fund Payroll $6,747.71

Total Payroll Disbursements $534,956.45

Total Cash Disbursements $741,496.40

Submitted by: Trish Culhane
Approved by:

Date: September 16th 2015 _________________________________



1 1Checking Account:

09/21/2015 588.19132754 4IMPRINT, Inc.4IMPRINTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 588.1910 2140 410 00General Supplies4115347

09/21/2015 264.00132755 4-U Limousine, Inc4ULIMOUSINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/11/2015 264.0010 2330 331 00TransportationConf 12875

09/21/2015 6,580.45132756 John NesbittABPHOTOPRICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/26/2015 805.0010 2570 360 00Printing11448 2016645

08/25/2015 5,775.4510 2310 300 00Board Purchased Service11450

09/21/2015 123.90132757 AAA Lock and Key, IncAAALOCKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 123.9020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies0000027893

09/21/2015 1,017.60132758 ABM Janitorial MidwestABMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 1,017.6020 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8386895

09/21/2015 4,600.00132759 Advanced Fire & Security Systems IncADVANCEDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 4,600.0020 2544 310 00Care and Upkeep - Equip18856

09/21/2015 13,169.22132760 All CoveredALLCOVEREDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/17/2015 1,643.1810 2225 300 02All Covered683934

08/18/2015 2,663.0410 2225 300 02All Covered684011

08/18/2015 1,094.4010 2225 300 02All Covered684012

08/18/2015 2,736.0010 2225 300 02All Covered684014

08/19/2015 475.7610 2225 300 02All Covered684095

08/19/2015 177.8410 2225 300 02All Covered684096

09/01/2015 4,379.0010 2225 300 02All Covered686851

09/21/2015 5,290.90132761 Apple Computer IncAPPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 149.0010 196Teachers Computer Buy4348971526 LC5088

08/13/2015 399.9010 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies4349189933

08/13/2015 494.0010 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies4349244559

08/20/2015 3,790.0010 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies4350071216 LC5121

08/28/2015 79.0010 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies4350970918

08/31/2015 379.0010 1110 410 00KDG Supplies4351141750 16536

09/21/2015 1,372.93132762 ASI Associates IncASIASSOCIACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 1

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/13/2015 1,260.7310 1110 410 10Science Supplies082535 16456

08/19/2015 112.2010 1110 410 10Science Supplies082606 16480

09/21/2015 896.45132763 AT&TATTCAROLSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 896.4520 2540 340 00Communication3213568203

09/21/2015 292.52132764 Banner Sign Company, IncBANNERSIGNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/15/2015 292.5210 2140 410 00General Supplies15056

09/21/2015 4,429.46132765 Barnes & NobleBARNESCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/05/2015 4,040.1010 2321 410 00Admin General Supplies3074259 201650

08/07/2015 389.3610 2321 410 00Admin General Supplies3076224

09/21/2015 200.00132766 Benefit AdvantageBENEFITADVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/02/2015 200.0010 2330 640 00Dues and Fees392873

09/21/2015 666.75132767 Bob's Dairy ServiceBOBSDAIRYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/24/2015 103.6510 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense192604

08/31/2015 162.9510 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense192769

09/03/2015 118.6010 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense192909

09/09/2015 118.6010 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense193056

09/15/2015 162.9510 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense193183

09/21/2015 210.22132768 C & H Distributors, LLCCHDISTRIBUCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/25/2015 210.2210 2310 410 00Board Supplies11354629

09/21/2015 7,730.00132769 Campus PaintersCAMPUSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/10/2015 7,730.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service10553

09/21/2015 1,213.14132770 Carolina Biological SupplCAROLINACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 1,213.1410 1120 410 09Science Supplies49193338 RI 16479

09/21/2015 7,897.38132771 CDW Government, IncCDWCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 430.0810 1110 300 01JSSPVA Purchased ServicesXL75771 LC5119

08/18/2015 2,600.0010 2222 500 00Library Equipment Capitol OutlayXL75771 LC5119

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 2

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/18/2015 616.9610 2225 400 00Tech Material & SuppliesXL81685 LC5118

08/18/2015 3,598.0010 2225 500 00Tech Equipment Capital OutlayXL81685 LC5118

08/26/2015 652.3410 2225 400 00Tech Material & SuppliesXQ43333 lc5122

09/21/2015 1,372.00132772 Central Rug and CarpetCENTRALRUGCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/09/2015 1,372.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service220338

09/21/2015 168.80132773 Chicago Educational Publishing CompanyCHICAGOEDUCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 168.8010 1110 410 10Science Supplies3088521 15632

09/21/2015 60.00132774 CHICAGO TRIBUNE SUBSCRIPNCHGOTRIBCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 60.0010 2220 440 00Library PeriodicalsPays thru 11/24

09/21/2015 2,990.00132775 ComcastCOMCASTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/15/2015 2,990.0010 2225 300 01Comcast Network37225975

09/21/2015 831.00132776 Computer DriveCOMPUTERDRCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

07/28/2015 831.0010 2225 323 00Tech Repair & Maintenance226014

09/21/2015 2,446.92132777 CORNER BAKERYCORNERBAKECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 158.5010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11003145300125

08/24/2015 411.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11003865320125

08/24/2015 993.1510 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11003875320125 16509

08/17/2015 215.6810 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004295330125

08/18/2015 132.6510 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004305330125

08/13/2015 286.0010 2560 490 01Lunch Milk Expense11004325330125

08/18/2015 131.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004665340125

08/20/2015 68.9810 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004755340125

09/02/2015 49.9610 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11005335360125

09/21/2015 756.00132778 The DBQ CompanyDBQCOMPANYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/21/2015 756.0010 1120 410 05Soc Studies Supplies2015-08-113 16518

09/21/2015 27.95132779 DemcoDEMCOCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 27.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies5677698 lc5124

09/21/2015 80.47132780 Discount School SupplyDISCOUNTSCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 3

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/31/2015 80.4710 2140 410 00General SuppliesD21525870101 16531

09/21/2015 2,600.00132781 Discovery EducationDISCOVEREDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/02/2015 2,600.0010 2225 300 03Tech Subscriptions90114091 lc5098

09/21/2015 93.88132782 Allison DrewDREWCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/21/2015 93.8810 2560 490 00Lunch Expense08/18-08/21

09/21/2015 412.00132783 EARTHWISE ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.EARTHWISECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

06/05/2015 175.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies32711

06/16/2015 62.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies32792

09/11/2015 175.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies33605

09/21/2015 520.00132784 Nancy Economou-PuhlECONOMOUPUCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 520.0010 2330 300 00Professional GrowthTuition Reimbur

09/21/2015 223.49132785 ElightbulbsELIGHTBULBCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 223.4920 2540 410 00Oper and Maint SuppliesINV1864870 1611

09/21/2015 28.14132786 Eric Armin IncEAICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 28.1410 1110 410 044th Grade SuppliesINV0736810 16324

09/21/2015 92.73132787 Fed ExFEDERALEXCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/26/2015 92.7310 2310 340 00Board Communication5-138-89802

09/21/2015 305.50132788 First Security SystemsFIRSTSECURCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/14/2015 305.5020 2535 300 00Purchased ServicesS82184

09/21/2015 7,239.52132789 Follett School Solutions, IncFOLLETTSCHCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 310.2710 2220 430 00Library Books706026F-6 LC5099

08/26/2015 1,627.9210 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies716607F-1 16473

08/07/2015 1,191.5610 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies716662-1 16470

07/31/2015 1,606.4810 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies716662F-0 16470

08/24/2015 408.4810 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies721665F-6 lc5114

08/14/2015 252.2510 2410 410 00General Supplies722165F-0 LC5115

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 4

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/25/2015 1,722.6010 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies724051f-5

09/04/2015 119.9610 2220 430 00Library Books728275-6 LC5123

09/21/2015 6,110.00132790 Tony FrontierFRONTIERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 6,110.0010 2210 300 00Consultant Fees243

09/21/2015 1,143.90132791 General BindingGBCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/28/2015 578.2410 2410 410 00General Supplies339959

08/29/2015 565.6610 2410 410 00General Supplies340056

09/21/2015 123.05132792 Genesis TechnologiesGENESISCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/17/2015 123.0510 2225 400 02Printer Ink/Toner202501232727

09/21/2015 2,222.00132793 Genesis Technologies IncGENESISTECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 2,222.0010 2410 390 00Copier17429661

09/21/2015 1,067.55132794 Gordon Food Service, IncGORDONFOODCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/24/2015 1,067.5510 2560 490 04Organic Milk Expense164963248

09/21/2015 864.99132795 W. W. GraingerGRAINGERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 225.0520 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9811354472

08/14/2015 474.9420 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9818044514

08/25/2015 66.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9826249691

08/25/2015 55.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9826249709

08/25/2015 44.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9826249717

09/21/2015 100.57132796 Grand Food CenterGRANDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/20/2015 100.5710 2560 490 00Lunch Expense2016654

09/21/2015 999.00132797 Guitar CenterGUITARCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/06/2015 999.0010 1110 410 07Elem Music SuppliesARINV27349857 16466

09/21/2015 79.40132798 Jason HahnstadtHAHNSTADTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 79.4010 2140 410 00General Supplies08/25/15

09/21/2015 159.39132799 Handwriting Without Tears IncHANDWRITINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 5

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/07/2015 159.3910 1110 332 00Elementary Travel9629601 16487

09/21/2015 17,094.09132800 Houghton MifflinHARCOURTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 1,275.9510 1110 410 00KDG Supplies951643158 16488

08/12/2015 7,871.4810 1811 001Textbooks and Materials951645007 16497

08/13/2015 1,556.8610 1811 001Textbooks and Materials951648890 16497

08/15/2015 366.2010 1120 410 28Spanish Material & Supplies951652772 16504

08/26/2015 3,696.0010 1120 410 28Spanish Material & Supplies951700203 16526

08/26/2015 576.3510 1120 410 28Spanish Material & Supplies951705224 16504

09/09/2015 1,751.2510 1120 410 28Spanish Material & Supplies951722425 16504

09/21/2015 1,680.00132801 IASBIASBCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/08/2015 1,680.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth83rd Annual Con

09/21/2015 30.63132802 IDESIDESCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/15/2015 30.6380 2363 381 00Unemployment Insurance0653468787

09/21/2015 7,509.81132803 IEC Nextera Energy ServicesIECNEXTERACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/24/2015 7,509.8120 2540 466 00Electricity08232015

09/21/2015 150.00132804 Illinois Association for Gifted ChildrenIAGCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/09/2015 150.0010 2410 330 00Professional GrowthMbrp# 725DP 16545

09/21/2015 89.25132805 Illinois State PoliceILSTATCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 89.2510 2310 316 00Board Background Checks08/01/15

09/21/2015 8,000.00132806 Carol JagoJAGOCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

06/12/2015 4,000.0010 2210 300 00Consultant Fees957

06/27/2015 4,000.0010 2210 300 00Consultant Fees961

09/21/2015 464.50132807 Joy Labz LLCJOYLABZLLCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 464.5010 1110 430 05Library2803 LC5116

09/21/2015 244.95132808 K & J MagneticsKJMAGNETICCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/06/2015 244.9510 1110 410 10Science SuppliesN590429

09/21/2015 184.95132809 Lakeland/Larson ElevatorLAKELANDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 6

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 184.9520 2544 310 00Care and Upkeep - Equip66819

09/21/2015 183.95132810 Lakeshore Learning MatLAKESHORECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/20/2015 183.9510 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies4170940815 16513

09/21/2015 820.00132811 DALE LUKSHALUKSHACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 820.0010 2410 220 00Health Insurancee Board PortionSeptember 2015

09/21/2015 3,161.00132812 Luzazul Design LtdLUZAZULCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/10/2015 3,161.0010 2570 360 00Printing3620 2016655

09/21/2015 399.35132813 Master BrewMASTERBREWCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 399.3510 2410 410 04Water/Soda/Coffee1328451

09/21/2015 127.01132814 Menards-Morton GroveMENARDSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/25/2015 37.2820 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies270

08/12/2015 7.1620 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies98964-1

08/18/2015 82.5720 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies99551

09/21/2015 771.00132815 Michiana LLC DBA Marla's LunchMICHIANALLCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/16/2015 771.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense09/16/15

09/21/2015 155.00132816 Mid-Central PrintingMIDCENTRALCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/24/2015 155.0010 2310 340 00Board Communication50091

09/21/2015 7,120.00132817 MIDWEST ARBOR CORP.MIDWARBORCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/25/2015 7,120.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services3027767

09/21/2015 155.70132818 Molly Hawkins HouseMOLLYHACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/12/2015 155.7010 1120 410 01Art Supplies20966 16496

09/21/2015 165.00132819 NATIONAL GEOGRAPHIC KIDSNATGEOKIDSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/04/2015 135.0010 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies09/04/15 16472

09/05/2015 30.0010 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies09/05/15 16417

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 7

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

09/21/2015 169.00132820 Nerds IncNERDSINCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 169.0010 1110 410 10Science Supplies20115

09/21/2015 200.00132821 New Trier Township High School Dst. 203NEWTRIERHSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 200.0010 2321 640 00Admin Dues and Fees8/19/15

09/21/2015 5,788.37132822 North American Paper Co.NORTHAMERICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/06/2015 4,890.7720 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies7626541

08/19/2015 529.3520 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies7640472

08/19/2015 368.2520 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies7640473

09/21/2015 150.00132823 NORTH COOK INTERMEDIATE SERVICE
CENTER

NORTHCOOKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/27/2015 150.0010 2321 339 00Admin Other Trans Svc005532 2016653

09/21/2015 290.97132824 Northern Illinois GasNICORCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/09/2015 290.9720 2540 465 00Natural Gas08/01-09/01/15

09/21/2015 367.00132825 Northwest Evaluation AssociationNORTHWESTECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 367.0010 2230 400 07Assessment/Testing Material & SuppliesINV0037500 16532

09/21/2015 10.00132826 The Omni GroupOMNIGROUPCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/01/2015 10.0010 2520 311 01403B Administrative Services1509-7911

09/21/2015 780.00132827 The Organic Gardner Ltd.ORGANICGARCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/17/2015 780.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services3955

09/21/2015 2,696.67132828 Palos Sports, Inc.PALOSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 540.7310 1120 410 12JRH Phy Ed Supplies208963-00 16503

08/18/2015 1,723.9910 1120 410 12JRH Phy Ed Supplies208969-00 16502

08/20/2015 111.9710 1120 410 12JRH Phy Ed Supplies208969-01 16502

08/25/2015 319.9810 1110 410 12Elem Phys Ed Supplies208969-02 16502

09/21/2015 1,541.10132829 Panera Bread/St Louis Bread CoPANERACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

05/04/2015 157.2210 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900308

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 8

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/17/2015 162.4810 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900371

08/20/2015 464.4410 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900376

08/20/2015 623.9210 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900377

09/03/2015 88.0810 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900384

09/03/2015 44.9610 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies60063900385

09/21/2015 430.00132830 Rachelle ParkerPARKERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/28/2015 430.0010 1311Tuition08/28/15

09/21/2015 8,684.00132831 PASCOSCIENTIFICPASCOSCIENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/17/2015 3,394.0010 1110 410 10Science Supplies554990 16478

08/12/2015 4,671.0010 1120 410 09Science Supplies555302 16477

08/12/2015 544.0010 1120 410 09Science Supplies555303 16478

08/28/2015 75.0010 1110 410 10Science Supplies556634 16478

09/21/2015 307.02132832 PeapodPEAPODCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/10/2015 307.0210 1120 410 07Home Ec Suppliesa61646012

09/21/2015 1,500.00132833 Pearson EducationPEARSONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/14/2015 1,500.0010 1200 390 00Spec Ed Purchased Svc10329998 16395

09/21/2015 168.99132834 J W PepperPEPPERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 168.9910 1120 410 02Music Supplies11A98447 16489

09/21/2015 31.94132835 PESIPESICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/26/2015 31.9410 2410 410 00General Supplies891192 16452

09/21/2015 193.50132836 Piero's PizzaPIEROSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 193.5010 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies551953

09/21/2015 49.39132837 Premier Mechanical IncPREMIERMECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 49.3920 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service50640

09/21/2015 610.00132838 Quality Print and MailQUALITYPRICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/18/2015 610.0010 2570 360 00Printing182

09/21/2015 2,164.01132839 QUILL.COMQUILLCOMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 9

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/14/2015 1,676.8410 2140 410 00General Supplies6853329

08/18/2015 11.6910 2140 410 00General Supplies6912710 16515

08/18/2015 154.9810 2140 410 00General Supplies6925840

08/18/2015 14.9810 2140 410 00General Supplies6931658 16515

08/18/2015 22.4710 2140 410 00General Supplies6938045 16515

08/28/2015 283.0510 2140 410 00General Supplies7286270 16530

09/21/2015 44.99132840 Quinlan & Fabish MusicQUINLANCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/03/2015 44.9910 1120 410 02Music Supplies8527516 16542

09/21/2015 179.55132841 Ranger RickRANGERRICKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 179.5510 2210 410 01JSSPVA Curriculum Supply3514369259 16471

09/21/2015 787.13132842 Really Good StuffREALLYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/05/2015 86.9410 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies5224542

08/11/2015 89.9110 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies5244945 16380

08/12/2015 48.7410 2140 410 00General Supplies5250752 16392

08/14/2015 561.5410 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies5260875 16492

09/21/2015 11,299.30132843 Robbins,Schwartz,NicholasROBBINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/25/2015 11,299.3010 2310 318 00Board Legal Service263185

09/21/2015 93.00132844 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONSROSEPESTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/17/2015 93.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services1663220

09/21/2015 742.81132845 Russo Power EquipmentRUSSOCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/28/2015 31.1420 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies2632433

09/02/2015 139.6720 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies2640495

09/02/2015 572.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies2640548

09/21/2015 1,600.20132846 SANGARI ACTIVE SCIENCESANGARICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/10/2015 1,600.2010 1120 410 09Science Supplies3010 16328

09/21/2015 100.80132847 Vicki SaxtonSAXTONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/21/2015 100.8010 2140 410 00General Supplies08/21/15

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 10

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

09/21/2015 3,215.00132848 Schmidt Custom Floors, Inc.SCHMIDTCFCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/31/2015 3,215.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service105742

09/21/2015 252.51132849 Scholastic LibrarySCHOLASTICCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 252.5110 1110 410 09Reading SuppliesM5696786

09/21/2015 3,083.82132850 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/12/2015 506.1310 1120 410 09506.13202501232727 16408

08/22/2015 506.1310 1110 410 10Science Supplies202501238950 16408

08/03/2015 776.0010 2321 410 00Admin General Supplies204500442072

08/06/2015 5.8310 2140 410 00General Supplies208114880664

08/07/2015 18.8410 2140 410 00General Supplies208114900409

08/08/2015 285.5410 2140 410 00General Supplies208114907201

08/08/2015 101.4210 1120 410 01Art Supplies208114907210

08/10/2015 15.5110 2140 410 00General Supplies208114920470

08/10/2015 31.0210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114923927

08/10/2015 210.8810 2140 410 00General Supplies208114925109

08/11/2015 334.0410 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114937262 16427

08/11/2015 30.9610 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies208114939432

08/13/2015 261.5210 2321 410 00Admin General Supplies208114964655 16501

09/21/2015 3,578.07132851 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/15/2015 242.1610 2140 410 00General Supplies208114985859 16491

08/17/2015 191.5610 2140 410 00General Supplies208114995113 PO16511

08/17/2015 45.2810 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114995627 16407

08/18/2015 17.6610 2140 410 00General Supplies208115008024 16511

08/21/2015 2.1710 2140 410 00General Supplies208115053579 16484

08/21/2015 21.1510 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208115053626 16407

08/21/2015 1,259.1110 2140 410 00General Supplies208115054266 lc5120

08/25/2015 1,342.7110 1120 410 01Art Supplies208115080479 16460

08/26/2015 60.9010 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208115085595 16333

08/28/2015 78.5110 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208115109720 16368

08/31/2015 12.2410 2140 410 00General Supplies208115132366 16364

09/01/2015 103.5110 1120 410 04General Supplies20811514141909 16533

09/03/2015 201.1110 2140 410 00General Supplies208115163455

09/21/2015 2,057.74132852 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/03/2015 51.9010 2140 410 00General Supplies208115163540

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 11

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/25/2015 4.8410 2140 410 00General Supplies2088115079914 16427

08/10/2015 2,001.0010 2321 410 00Admin General Supplies3045000063966 josephsears8Jun

09/21/2015 842.35132853 School SpecialtyDELTACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/22/2015 842.3510 1110 410 10Science Supplies2020501238898 16307

09/21/2015 511.22132854 SPRINTSPRINTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/07/2015 511.2220 2540 340 00Communication190445514-037

09/21/2015 186.82132855 Staples Business AdvantageSTAPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/08/2015 141.8710 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies8035532992 16425

08/29/2015 44.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies8035814803 16529

09/21/2015 352.83132856 STERLING PUBLISHING CO., INC.STERPUBCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 352.8310 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies06412939 16423

09/21/2015 180.00132857 Superintendents' Round TableSRNDTABLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/08/2015 180.0010 2321 640 00Admin Dues and Fees09/08/15

09/21/2015 225.00132858 Survey MonkeySURVEYMONKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/04/2015 225.0010 2410 410 00General Supplies25159193

09/21/2015 125.00132859 Talx UC ExpressTALXUCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/08/2015 125.0080 2363 381 00Unemployment Insurance1921482

09/21/2015 3,181.00132860 TCI Teacher Curriculm InstTCICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/28/2015 976.0010 2225 300 03Tech SubscriptionsINV16349

08/31/2015 2,205.0010 2225 300 03Tech SubscriptionsINV16418

09/21/2015 2,400.00132861 Thinking Maps, IncTHINKINGMACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/27/2015 2,400.0010 2330 300 00Professional GrowthINV0044077

09/21/2015 490.60132862 Time for KidsTIMEKIDSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/16/2015 267.6010 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies1077119400 16345

08/24/2015 223.0010 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies1077119400/1st 16336

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 12

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

09/21/2015 423.35132863 Triarco Arts & CraftsTRIARCOCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/11/2015 423.3510 1120 410 01Art Supplies518843 16494

09/21/2015 566.00132864 Tribune Publishing Company, LLC Chicago
Tribune Media Group,

CHICAGOTRICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/23/2015 566.0010 2570 360 00Printing002177517

09/21/2015 268.00132865 Trugreen ChemlawnTRUGREENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/30/2015 168.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services37391637

09/04/2015 100.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services37740719

09/21/2015 1,700.00132866 Tyler Technologies, IncTYLERTECHNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/12/2015 600.0010 2223 470 00Computer Software025-133325

08/27/2015 1,100.0010 2223 470 00Computer Software025-133766

09/21/2015 194.44132867 Emily TzurTZURCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/09/2015 194.4410 1614 002Organic Milk Sales09/09/15

09/21/2015 49.00132868 US Brass Shop.comUSBRASSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/21/2015 49.0010 2140 410 00General Supplies08/21/15 20152008001

09/21/2015 102.36132869 Vanguard Energy Services LLCVANGUARDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/08/2015 102.3620 2540 465 00Natural Gas400-1508-3829

09/21/2015 1,200.00132870 HARMONY WATSONWATSONHARCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

09/09/2015 1,200.0010 2330 300 00Professional GrowthTuition Reimbur

09/21/2015 437.00132871 WengerWENGERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/24/2015 437.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies691400 16520

09/21/2015 34.95132872 Jennifer WillisWILLISJENNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/07/2015 34.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies08/07/15

09/21/2015 1,649.90132873 Joseph Sears SchoolREVOLVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/19/2015 701.6810 2140 410 00General Supplies5373

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 13

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



1 1Checking Account:

08/18/2015 650.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense5374

08/21/2015 234.0710 2560 490 03In-Service/Lunch Supplies5375

09/10/2015 57.1910 2560 490 00Lunch Expense5376

09/10/2015 6.9610 2140 410 00General Supplies5377

09/21/2015 72.111851 Chaidan LeshinskiUPPCHAIDANDirect DepositCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/10/2015 72.1110 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies08/10/15

09/21/2015 13.591852 Angela LascolaLASCOLADirect DepositCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:

Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date

08/20/2015 13.5910 2140 410 00General Supplies08/2015

206,539.951*Denotes Expensed Invoice Item Checking Account ID: Total without Voids:

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 14

09/16/2015 11:31 AM

Detail Check Register

User ID: TC



9/18/2015 Application for Recognition of Public Schools 2015-2016

05-0160380-02 2001

Pending - District AdminThe Joseph Sears School

Do you have any paraprofessionals in your school?YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code Part I, Subpart A, Sections 1.10-1.100, School Recognition 

Requirements rules, i.e.,  accountability framework including school improvement  plans, operational requirements, 

state assessment, waiver of State Board Rules and School Code Mandates, etc.

YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart B, Sections 1.210-1.290, School Governance 

rules, i.e., equal opportunities for all students, waiver of school fees, discipline, absenteeism, and truancy policies, 

and use of isolated time out and physical restraint, etc.

YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart C, Sections 1.310-1.330, School District 

Administration rules, i.e., administrative responsibilities, evaluation of certified staff in contractual continued service, 

and hazardous materials training, etc.

YES

In accordance with 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart D, Sections 1.410-1.470, The Instructional Program 

Rules, i.e., basic standards, criteria for elementary and high schools, required course substitute, special programs, 

credit earned through proficiency examinations, consumer education proficiency tests, ethnic foreign language credit 

and program approval, adult and continuing education, etc.

YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart E, Sections 1.510-1.530, Support Services 

rules, i.e., transportation, health services, and training of school bus driver instructors, etc.

YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart F, Sections 1.610-1.660,  Staff Certification 

Requirements rules, i.e., noncertificated personnel, transcripts of credits, records of professional personnel, and 

records of professional personnel, etc.

YES

In accordance with the 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part I, Subpart G, Sections 1.705-1.790, Staff Qualifications 

rules, i.e., requirements for elementary teachers, requirements for teachers of middle grades, requirements for 

secondary teachers and specified subject area teachers in grades 6 and above, standards for reading, media services, 

pupil personnel services, special education personnel, requirements for bilingual education teachers, teachers of 

English as a second language, substitute teachers, and supervision of speech-language pathology assistants etc.

YES

1



9/18/2015 Application for Recognition of Public Schools 2015-2016

2



9/18/2015 Application for Recognition of Public Schools 2015-2016

05-0160380-02 0000

Pending - District AdminKenilworth SD 38

In accordance with Section 5/24A-3 (b) of the School Code [105 ILCS 5/24A-3 (b)], the school district assures each 

evaluator that undertakes an evaluation has completed the pre-qualification training program required by law.

YES

In accordance  with Section 5/24A-5 of the School Code [105 ILCS 5/24A-5], as part of its teacher, principal, and 

assistant principal evaluation plans, the school district has implemented a four category rating system using 

"excellent," "proficient," "needs improvement," and "unsatisfactory."

YES

In accordance with Sections 5/24A-15 and 34-8 of the School Code [105 ILCS 5/24A-15 and 105 ILCS 5/34-8] and 

Part 50 of the 23 Illinois Administrative Code [23 Ill Admin. Code 50], the school district assures evaluations of 

principals and assistant principals use student growth at a minimum of 30%.

YES

1



9/18/2015 Application for Recognition of Public Schools 2015-2016

2



Kenilworth School District No. 38

09/17/2015 2:56 PM

Employee Name Position FTE Earnings Bonuses Annuities Retirement 
Enhancements

Other Benefits Vac Days Sick Days

Acosta, Nicole Instructional Assistant 1 19,845.00 3,315.75 15

Almendarez, Shea Teacher 1 51,106.50 9,737.36 15

Arra, Jennifer Teacher 1 58,630.00 1,841.28 15

Bajkowska, Karolina Teacher 1 48,893.13 9,655.52 15

Beavin, James Teacher 1 89,457.00 2,763.84 15

Beluch, Deborah Instructional Assistant 1 18,900.00 2,007.42 15

Berg, Mary Ann Instructional Assistant 1 28,812.94 4,842.91 15

Bialk, Robert Joseph Teacher 1 73,937.00 16,361.83 15

Borkan, Samantha Teacher 1 53,266.00 9,783.55 15

Brothers, Janet Nurse 1 83,351.00 16,018.87 16

Cabin, Ross Teacher 1 75,308.00 18,604.08 15

Campanaro, Julie 12 Month 1 67,006.65 11,445.58 20 15

Casas, R Maxim C 12 Month 1 43,692.60 30,803.69 15 15

Chamberlin, Theresa Teacher 1 129,328.48 17,342.12 16

Chase, Sara Instructional Assistant 1 19,845.00 3,320.67 15

Comiza, Jennifer Hilliard Teacher 1 94,245.60 20,191.68 15

Conaghan-Goodman, Judi Teacher 1 73,342.00 19,214.39 15

Culhane, Patricia Bookkeeper 55,208.00 18,421.80 10 15

Drew, Allison Teacher 1 74,030.00 10,392.12 15

Economou-Puhl, Nancy Teacher .6 29,822.70 9,060.35 15

Erokwu, Chike 12 Month 1 13,000.00 4,411.34
3 4

Fontana, Julie Teacher 1 95,564.00 16,890.48
15

Friedman, Caryn Teacher 1 99,311.14 11,152.27 15

Friedman, Lana Instructional Assistant 1 36,353.16 12,004.88 15

Geib, Deborah 12 Month 1 30,940.00 30,969.35 15

Gerdin, Jeffrey Teacher 1 75,548.00 19,235.35 15

Gilchrist, Alison Teacher 1 80,555.00 19,390.83 15

Goff, Kim Instructional Assistant 1 18,900.00 3,158.93 15

Goodrich, Myra Teacher 1 73,342.00 9,338.61 15



Kenilworth School District No. 38

09/17/2015 2:56 PM

Employee Name Position FTE Earnings Bonuses Annuities Retirement 
Enhancements

Other Benefits Vac Days Sick Days

Gordon, Elizabeth Teacher 1 56,471.00 9,891.87 15

Gordon, William Teacher 1 88,351.00 19,630.13 15

Hahnstadt, Jason Teacher 1 70,866.00 19,169.13 15

Harradine, Michelle Teacher 1 91,935.31 16,787.78 15

Hayden, Emily Teacher 1 106,647.00 21,805.82 15

Heidtke, Tyler Teacher 1 48,843.13 8,605.11 15

Hubert, Lynne Teacher 1 107,061.00 3,305.03 16

Jennings, Rachael Teacher 1 45,512.62 8,508.29 15

Jones, Julia Director of Student Service 1 110,000.00 23,471.42 20 15

Kalinich, Kelley Superintendent 1 258,611.62 $5,000.00 56,479.78 20 15

Kalinowska, Justyna Teacher 1 56,757.00 16,330.77
15

Kaplan, Lindsay Teacher 1 63,503.00 18,187.82 15

Kohn, Natalie Teacher 1 52,802.79 9,773.20 15

Korrub, Aliza Instructional Assistant 1 17,640.00 2,906.76 15

Lascola, Angela 12 Month 1 43,376.80 24,568.95 15 15

LeBris, Elisabeth Teacher 1 141,459.05 2,300.92 16

Ledoux, Marqus Instructional Assistant 1 17,955.00 2,535.96 15

Lehman, Lisa Teacher 1 73,522.00 10,393.61 15

LeRoy, Crystal Business Serv/HR Manager 1 178,500.00 50,405.31 20 15

Leshinski, Chaidan Teacher 1 54,844.23 1,726.69 15

Lewis, Jessica Teacher 1 64,534.00 10,139.39 15

Long, Nicole Instructional Assistant 1 13,896.96 376.49 15

Lopuszynski, Allison Teacher 1 68,295.16 10,257.05 15

Lowell, Kathleen Teacher 1 121,764.48 3,725.58 16

Lubetkin, Andrew Teacher 1 100,427.00 21,631.41 16

Lucas, Catherine Teacher 1 59,867.54 17,573.43 15

Luksha, Dale 12 Month 1 34,608.00 4,749.08 10 15

Magnani, Julie Teacher 1 71,961.36 12,195.53 15



Employee Name Position FTE Earnings Bonuses Annuities Retirement 
Enhancements

Other Benefits Vac Days Sick Days

McDowell, Tracey Teacher 1 47,672.30 1,478.90 15

Moy, Gregory Teacher 1 65,567.25 20,613.31 15

Nash, Sherry Instructional Assistant 1 24,380.80 4,046.22 15

Peterson, Jennifer Teacher 1 61,036.15 9,042.16 15

Petroline, Vicki Instructional Assistant 1 12,899.25 2,154.48 15

Quigley, Catherine Teacher 1 63,501.00 1,988.42 15

Quijada, Moris Director of Grounds 1 87,742.46 40,078.70 20 15

Rice, Anna Teacher 1 114,516.02 17,754.19 16

Richmond, Leslie Teacher 1 75,308.00 20,865.59 16

Rodin, Gail Teacher 1 75,725.00 10,437.59 15

Rodriguez, Barbara Teacher 1 97,805.00 21,581.75 15

Romisher, Laura Teacher 1 97,266.00 21,536.62 15

Rosen, Jeffrey Teacher 1 67,233.00 2,072.00 15

Rosenberg, Carol Teacher 1 63,611.18 18,262.82 15

Sahn, Laurie Teacher 1 83,176.00 21,009.25 15

Savarino, Enza Teacher 1 60,764.00 8,955.55 15

Scheidt, John Teacher 1 66,387.70 20,632.06 16

Scott, Merridy Instructional Assistant 1 20,414.13 3,430.93 15

Seiler, Marcy 12 Month 1 49,875.00 28,939.45 15

Sheridan, Cathleen Teacher 1 94,204.00 2,916.48 15

Sideris, Toula Teacher 1 94,317.00 21,468.98 15

Slovitt, Bernadette Teacher 1 64,178.00 17,432.79 15

Small, Catherine Marilyn Teacher 1 46,119.00 2,417.95 15

Sotern, Tina Instructional Assistant 1 10,443.31 2,991.99
15

Sprague, Sharon Teacher 1 86,945.00 41,135.13 15

Stadler, Challen Instructional Assistant 1 18,900.00 3,159.03 15

Stepen, Daphna Teacher 1 101,787.00 21,566.93 16

Tiesse, Linda Teacher 1 112,988.00 10,539.04 15

Toan, Joyce Teacher 1 63,575.18 15,390.76 16

Trueman, Anne Teacher 1 91,497.00 21,347.39 15

Tsarpalas, Mary Beth Instructional Assistant 1 17,955.00 2,555.31 15



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Employee Name Position FTE Earnings Bonuses Annuities Retirement 
Enhancements

Other Benefits Vac Days Sick Days

Uhle, Samantha Instructional Assistant 1 18,900.00 3,159.00 15

Wallace, Kendra Principal 1 140,000.00 44,914.49 20 15

Watson, Harmony Teacher 1 56,785.00 8,845.09 15

Wilczynski, Chana Instructional Assistant 1 18,900.00 3,633.81 15

Willis, Jennifer Teacher 1 88,367.00 9,795.71 15

Zajakowski, Blythe Szafoni Teacher 1 100,205.00 19,984.83 15

Page: 10

User ID: AL



 

 

 
 

Curriculum -- Response to Intervention / Gifted 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Incorporate Multi-Tiered System of 
Support (MTSS) language into the 
academic lexicon of the Joseph Sears 
School along side Response to 
Intervention (RtI). 

SY 2015-2016 • Produce documents 
specifying new procedures 
and distribute to the Sears 
community 

• Update student handbook 
with revised material 

Revise current RtI/MTSS procedures, 
assessments, tiers and 
intervention/enrichment material. 

SY 2015-2016  
• Produce documents 

specifying new procedures 
and distribute to the Sears 
community 

• Update student handbook 
with revised materials 
 

Distribute RtI/MTSS printed 
information to the community, as well 
as hold forum to discuss 
differentiation, intervention and 
identifying advanced learners. 
    

SY 2015-2016 • Produce and distribute 
documents about MTSS to 
the Sears Community 

• Host a forum about RtI/Gifted 
information 

Develop and implement a 
comprehensive plan to meet the needs 
of gifted students. This includes 

SY 2015-2016 • Produce and present a 
document containing 
summary of committee work 



 

 

revisiting the district’s philosophy on 
Gifted Education, revisiting the 
identification tools and process, and 
defining elements of gifted services. 

 
 
 

and recommendations to the 
Board of Education 

• Communicate all relevant 
changes to Sears parents, 
faculty and community 
members 

 
 
 

Curriculum -- Mathematics 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Establish a comprehensive 
school-wide mathematics 
program. 

Summer 2015 • Define the scope and 
sequence of the mathematics 
program from K-8th grade 

• Create a philosophy statement 
for mathematics 

• Identify common terms for 
mathematics program and 
identify best practices 

• Update scope and sequence 
for elementary-level 
mathematics courses 

• Review Math in Focus at the 
elementary level and identify 
areas of weakness 

SY 2015-2016 • Review and revise K-5th 



 

 

grade Math in Focus materials 
and align K-5th grade scope 
and sequence 

• Establish a scope and 
sequence, learning targets and 
assessment structure K-8 to 
measure student growth and 
mastery. 

• Outline mathematics course 
offerings for junior high, 
including the creation of 
syllabi and course transition 
requirements 

• Integrate and verify the use of 
Standards for Mathematical 
Practices into K-5th grade 
mathematics curriculum 

• Research and initial findings 
and make a recommendation 
for junior high math materials 

• Receive a recommendation on 
overall mathematics program 
from New Trier High School 

• Audit math materials to align 
with CCSS and standards of 
mathematical practices 

 
SY 2016-2017 

• Present mathematics 
curriculum to the Kenilworth 
Board of Education for 
approval 

 



 

 

 
 

Curriculum – Humanities 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Establish a comprehensive 
school-wide English Language 
Arts program. 

Summer 2015 • Review CCSS for Anchor 1 
• Establish a rubric for junior 

high argumentative/opinion 
writing 

• Identify SS and Science CCSS 
integrated into ELA and 
rubric to align for junior high 
writing 

• Establish a bank of key terms 
for junior high writing 

• Revise scope and sequence 
and place on a standard 
format for elementary writing 

• Audit inventory/materials 
used for elementary writing 

• Establish a common rubric for 
elementary writing 

SY 2015-2016 • Identify learning targets 
across all grade levels 

• Identify research materials 
and materials indicating best 
practices for 
English/Language Arts 



 

 

SY 2016-2017 • Continue to develop and 
refine English/Language Arts 
curriculum 

• Research and develop 
additional educational 
materials 

 

SY 2017-2018 • Review and audit reading and 
writing programs then update 
as needed  

• Host parent meetings to share 
the shift in practice and 
writing expectations 

• Present English/Language 
Arts curriculum to the 
Kenilworth Board of 
Education for approval 
 

Foster learning that broadens 
perspectives and engages all 
students in World Language in 
academic and authentic 
experiences. 

SY 2015-2016 
 

• Refine and publish the 
philosophy of world language 

• Examine World Language 
delivery model, identify any 
changes and shifts and publish 
this with the philosophy 

SY 2016-2017 • Research and revisit scope 
and sequence of World 
Language curriculum by the 
end of the year 

• Educate the Sears community 



 

 

in shifts in World Language 
instruction 

Establish a comprehensive 
school wide Social Science 
program. 

Summer 2015 • Establish a Social Science 
philosophy 

• Begin development of grades 
6-8 scope and sequence, 
learning targets, EQs and 
curriculum 

SY 2015-2016 • Publish a philosophy detailing 
the Social Science philosophy 

• Align Social Science work 
with C3 standards 

• Review and research materials 
• Identify rubrics  

 
 

Curriculum – Professional Development 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Refine and revise a school-wide 
data plan 

Summer 2015 • Devise a matrix for data 
review 

• Establish a data review 
protocol 

• Review calendar dates relevant 
to data distribution and 
reception 



 

 

SY 2015-2016 • Establish goal setting protocol 
with regard to data analysis for 
school, teachers and students 

• Identify data sources to be 
used in monitoring progress 
toward growth goals 

• Create a bank of common 
terms around data and 
assessment 

• Integrate formative, interim 
and summative assessments 

• Establish board data 
presentation schedule 

Establish a professional 
development plan that meets the 
needs of teachers and student 
growth. The plan must include a 
teacher effectiveness model that 
includes an evaluation and 
student growth model that is 
KEA and Board approved. 

SY 2015-2016 • Create an annual plan for 
professional development 
opportunities 

• Identify goals and outcomes 
for professional development 

• Create a schedule of events 
and support opportunities 

• Create professional 
development feedback 
structures 

• Establish a professional 
development budget and 
justification document 

• Revise the summer 
professional development plan 

• Update the teacher evaluation 
document and pilot of the 
PERA Student Growth model 



 

 

 
 
 

Culture 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Establish and implement school 
procedures (rules, discipline, 
playground rules, hallway, 
lunchroom, etc.) 

SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 

Imbed the 4 cornerstones into 
the culture 

SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 

Establish a school-wide 
discipline plan 

SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 

Update the school committee 
structure 

SY 2015-2016 • Review the current committee 
structure and align committees 
with purpose, work and 
timelines 

• Define committees and 
identify participation structure 
in accordance with each 
committee’s purpose and goals 

• Create documentation 
identifying and framing 
committees and the new 
committee structure 



 

 

Establish a curriculum renewal 
process that meets the needs of 
school, grade level and 
department 

SY 2015-2016  

 
 

Communication 
 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Assess and improve 
school communication 
strategies for all 
parents, students and 
community members 

SY 2015-2016 • Establish a calendar for community gatherings 
and workshops 

• Update teacher newsletter and communication 
format to ensure access to information 

• Establish a print newsletter and specify the 
format, frequency of publication and method 
of distribution 

• Conduct regular surveys at the end of 
meetings, training opportunities. Ensure these 
notes and results are public. 

• Gather data from stakeholders on 
communication effectiveness 

• Create outlet for student input 
 

Summer 2016 • Review and revise communications strategies 
based on feedback from teachers, parents and 
community members 

Assess and 
communicate 

SY 2015-2016 • Publish a document that articulates the roles 
and responsibilities of administrators and 



 

 

Kenilworth School 
District No. 38’s 
organizational 
structure including the 
responsibilities of 
administrators 

support staff 
• Articulate the roles and responsibilities of 

administrators and support staff through a 
series of meet and greets 

• Monitor progress through annual surveys and 
content contained in the Joseph Sears Letter, 
annual report and district website 

Ensure transparency 
and trust by the Board 
of Education and 
Administration 
regarding 
deliberations and 
decision-making.  

SY 2015-2016 • Provide opportunities for informal 
communication with the community and 
Board Members 

• Re-assess satisfaction and progress through a 
mid-year survey (December) and an end of 
year survey (June) 

Organize information 
comprehensively and 
logically for ease of 
use and retrieval 

SY 2015-2016 • Improve the organization and accessibility of 
the information on the District website 

• Monitor progress through surveys on ease-of-
navigation of information on website 

Reach all members of 
the Kenilworth School 
District No. 38 
community 

SY 2015-2016 • Reach out to residents without children 
enrolled at the Joseph Sears School through 
community forums 

• Continue to promote listen@kenilworth38.org 
• Create a communications plan outlining 

internal and external communications 
• Facilitate an employee benefit fair to improve 

awareness and understanding of employee 
benefits 

• Conduct one-on-one meetings between the 
Superintendent and each District employee to 
provide opportunity for direct dialog 



 

 

Demonstrate respect 
for stakeholders 
through timely 
communications 

SY 2015-2016 • Establish a calendar including consistent 
content for regularly occurring administrative 
communications to parents 

• Establish a calendar including consistent 
content for regularly occurring administrative 
communications to faculty and staff 

• Monitor progress through survey data obtained 
from parents, faculty and staff 

 

Finance 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Establish and sustain a financial plan 
that supports the instructional and 
facility needs of the District, while 
maintaining the Board of Education’s 
minimum fund balance guidelines 

SY 2015-2016 • Review the District’s historical 
financial data and future 
financial projections for the 
Operations and Maintenance 
Fund 

• Determine the annual Master 
Facility Plan Budget to ensure 
that the District stays within the 
minimum fund balance 
guidelines 

• Confirm the District’s funding 
commitment to future facility 
projects 

• Determine the span of years for 
the Master Facility Plan Budget 

• Review the District’s future 
initiatives 



 

 

• Determine the District’s 
property tax revenue 
need/requirement in 
conjunction with the District’s 
per pupil expenditure cost 

• Determine if there is a way to 
flatten the increase slope for 
taxpayers 

• Negotiate a KEA contract that 
promotes the District mission 
statement, while maintaining 
fiscal integrity and efficiency 

• Research and implement new 
financial software to improve 
the accuracy and efficiency of 
the Business Office 

• Research and solicit RFP's for 
banking services to ensure 
efficient use of District Funds 

• Research and solicit RFP's for 
investment brokers to ensure 
efficient use of the District's 
fund balance 

 

Facilities 

Objective Timeline Action Plan 

Identify and prioritize the facility 
needs of the District, which support 

SY 2015-2016 • Determine the process for the 
implementation of the District’s 



 

 

the Board of Education’s vision for 
the Joseph Sears School 

Master Facility Plan 
• Review the District’s existing 

Master Facility Plan 
• Determine the District’s current 

facility needs 
• Prioritize the District’s facility 

needs 
• Establish a facility project 

schedule 
• Determine the process for 

addressing the District’s 
regular, annual capital projects 
list (non-master facility 
projects) 

• Review the District’s current 
capital project needs 

• Develop a procedure for 
requesting and approving 
regular annual capital projects 

• Research and solicit RFPs for 
architectural services to ensure 
efficient use of building space 
and building funds 

 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From: Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Date:  September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Community Forums 
 
 
 
Given the Kenilworth Board of Education’s stated desire to ensure transparency in decision-
making while representing the interests of the Kenilworth community, I propose the Board hold 
two community forums during the 2015-2016 school year. 
 

Forum #1: State of the District 
 

What: An annual forum where the Board of Education gives an overview of the state of the 
District. This will include: 
 

• A speech from the Board president 
• Introductions and background of board members 
• A speech from the Superintendent 
• Presentations from each committee chair summarizing the major highlights and 

initiatives from their committee throughout the past year. 
• Faculty recognition of accomplishments/achievements from the past year. This would 

include educational attainment, future retirements and commemoration of years of 
service to the District. 

• Short Q&A from community members 
• A summary of information printed out on paper and distributed to those in attendance 
• Reception with informal discussion afterward 
• 100% board attendance 

 
Who: Targeted to all parents, faculty and members of the Kenilworth community. 
 
Where: Nygaard Auditorium or the Kenilworth Club 
 
When: Oct. 19 or some time during the third week of October. Future events would be take place 
toward the middle of September. 
 
Why: As it currently stands, the Board as a whole does not have any way to address the 
Kenilworth community. Parent and faculty surveys indicate transparency and communication 
are major areas of improvement for the Board.  
 
 

Forum #2: Future of the District 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

What: An annual forum where the Board of Education previews upcoming initiatives for the 
next school year and provides opportunity for community interaction and input. This will 
include: 
 

• A speech from the Board president 
• A speech from the Superintendent -- report on strategic plan progress 
• Presentations from each committee chair looking forward to the big decisions and 

considerations for the upcoming school year. 
• A summary of information printed out on paper and distributed to those in attendance 
• Extended Q&A from the community 
• Reception with informal discussion afterward 
• 100% board attendance 

 
Who: Targeted to all parents, faculty and members of the Kenilworth Community 
 
Where: Nygaard Auditorium or the Kenilworth Club 
 
When: Late April or early May 
 
Why: Transparency in decision-making. While people are invited to make public comment 
during board meetings, they are not afforded the opportunity to interact with the board and 
receive direct answers to their questions. Offering the community that opportunity would help 
the Board become more transparent. 
 
 
 
Paper invitations will be directly mailed to all Kenilworth residents for both forums. We can also 
email Sears families and place notice in the Village letter.  



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
From Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Website Redesign Project 
 
Background 
 
The Joseph Sears School website, www.kenilworth38.org, was re-designed in Summer 2014 after 
the District agreed to a two-year contract extension with current content management system 
company, SchoolWires. The re-designed school website was partitioned into three sub-sites: One 
for the District, one for the Kenilworth Board of Education and one for the Joseph Sears School. 
Though many people believe the re-designed school website has been an upgrade over its 
previous incarnation, the separation between school and district has generated confusion from 
among the community. To this point, only 65 percent of parents surveyed in Spring 2015 felt 
website navigation is either “good” or “excellent.” The 65 percent usability satisfaction rating is 
down 14 percentage points from 2014, which suggests the parent community is growing 
increasingly dissatisfied with the school website layout and navigation.  
 
In addition to the website’s general overall appearance, counter-intuitive navigation, poor search 
functionality and non-existent internal video capacity, the website’s back-end content 
management system, Centricity 2, has been regarded as difficult to use for teachers, 
administrators and staff.  
 
The two-year contract with SchoolWires expires on 06/30/16. Due to the above factors, I 
recommend the Board favorably approve the redesign of the District website. 
 
Establishment of a Website Committee 
 
The District website affects a wide range of stakeholders in the Sears Community, including 
teachers, support staff, students, parents, board members and administrators. Each group has its 
own needs related to the website and representation from these groups will help ensure all 
needs are met throughout the redesign process. A small committee composed of no more than 7 
people will provide broad representation from stakeholders without hampering the decision-
making process.  
 
The Website Committee, led by the Communication Coordinator, will collectively decide the 
direction of the website redesign project. This includes brainstorming, selecting a CMS provider, 
determining overall appearance, determining content placement and determining functionality. 
The committee will meet on an as-needed basis and will consist of the following members: 
 

• The Communication Coordinator (lead) 
• District Administrator(s) 
• The Board Communications Liaison (Board representative) 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

• A District Technology Facilitator (technology representative)** 
• A Sears faculty member (KEA representative)** 
• A Sears parent (JSSPVA representative)** 

 
** -- Additional faculty/parent input can be found in the 2015 annual parent/faculty surveys. 
 
Project Overview/Timeline 
 
A full website redesign from start to finish can take anywhere from seven to nine months. Based 
on the content available and the scope of the redesign, the www.kenilworth38.org website will 
likely take at least nine months to redesign. The website re-design process will need to begin in 
October to allow enough time to launch before the start of the 2016-2017 school year. 
 
The following is a tentative timeline for the website design project: 
 
September    Board approval and Committee establishment 
October    Website research and selection of CMS provider 
November    Needs assessment and design considerations 
December-February   New design discussion and creation 
March-May    Content/information migration 
June-July    User training, promotion and rollout 
August 1    Targeted launch date   
 
Preliminary Cost Analysis 
 
A custom website built to accommodate the unique needs of our single-school district will 
guarantee the most desirable outcome of an excellent, user-friendly website. Custom websites, 
while slightly more expensive than websites built from pre-existing templates, offer flexibility in 
design and functionality. The following table provides a range of costs for custom websites: 
 
 One-time Startup Cost Annual Cost 
Current $1,275 $5,700 
Custom website $0-30,000 $1,500-$6,500 
 
Research into the cost structures of surrounding district websites has been performed and a 
more detailed analysis of website costs will be shared with the Website Committee and 
presented to the Board once a CMS provider is selected in November. 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
Mrs. Danielle Boros, Board Communications Liaison 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 

 
From: Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Date: September 21, 2015 
 
Re: Visual Identity Design Update 
 
 
 
I would like to present an update on the visual identity design project for the Joseph Sears 
School. 
 
Overview 
 
During summer, I approached Dr. LeRoy and Mrs. Boros about establishing a visual identity for 
the District. At the time, the District’s visual identity consisted of a low-resolution, 
monochromatic image of the school seal that had been applied inconsistently across a wide array 
of communications. Further, The Joseph Sears School had been using several low-resolution 
images of a school mascot that had been inconsistently applied on promotional materials and 
school spiritwear. Several other needs remained, including the need for: 
 

• District promotional materials 
• Professionally-designed, non-administrative letterhead for faculty/staff 
• Professionally-designed administrative letterhead for administrators 
• Administrative and non-administrative electronic letterheads 
• Social media graphics 
• Professionally-designed business cards 
• School visual promotional materials, including folders, car decals and bumper stickers, 

etc. 
• A visual communications policy to ensure professional, consistent communication across 

the District 
 
After meeting with Dr. LeRoy and Mrs. Boros, I was given permission to begin a comprehensive 
District visual identity design project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 School Logo (see presentation) 
 
The school logo was developed based on feedback from the Administrative Leadership Team. 
The school logo will be the primary visual identity marker for the Joseph Sears School. This 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

image will appear on letterheads, business cards, promotional materials, the website and other 
school communications. 
 
The logo is completed and it will be presented to the school and community. 
 
School Seal (see presentation) 
 
The school seal has been colored, cleaned up and enhanced. Seal versions No. 1 and No. 2 have 
been colored meaningfully and symbolically to highlight the aspects of the Joseph Sears School. 
The symbolism is as follows: 
 

• The seal has four colors, each one representative of one of the Four Cornerstones: 
o Green = Responsibility 
o Red = Kindness 
o White = Honesty 
o Blue = Respect 

• The green leaves are symbolic of the green elm trees that have historically represented 
Kenilworth. 

• The white book pages have been colored to signify the purity of education and the ideal 
that information at Sears is presented to students without bias or partisan.  

• The red book binding is symbolic of the passion teachers have in delivering education to 
the students. 

• The book, representative of the school, is surrounded by the green elms of Kenilworth, 
which are symbolic of how the school is surrounded by the support of the community. 

• Each ring on Seal version No. 2 is representative of a Cornerstone. 
 
The Board of Education is invited to make the final decision between the two colored seals. Once 
the decision is made, the seal will be formally presented to the school and the community. 
 
Panther Logo (see presentation) 
 
The panther logo is in continued development based on feedback from the Athletic Director and 
the Sears Booster Club. Tiger and wildcat logos have also been designed to promote the historic 
rivalry between the two Sears groups. The tiger and wildcat are oriented toward each other to 
promote the rivalry while the panther remains forward facing. 
 
I will work with Booster Club to generate three final panther designs. Once they are Booster 
Club approved, faculty and staff will vote on their favorite design and we will adopt that 
selection as our new panther. 
 
Stationary, Electronic Letterheads, etc. 
 
The remaining visual identity pieces will be developed with feedback from the Administration 
and rolled out once everything has been finished. I expect to have the majority of these pieces 
ready to present and roll out by late October. 


	Agenda for 9-21-15 Board Meeting
	 KSD No  38 Final Budget for FY16 - 092115
	FOIA Requests - September 2015
	Superintendent's Report - September 2015
	Annual Calendar of Board Activities
	Contact Guide (Community)
	CSBO's Report - September 2015
	Investment Presentation
	FY16 Proposed Budget Presentation
	Principal's Report - September 2015
	Enrollment Report September 2015
	DSS Report - September 2015
	DSS #1 - Genres
	DSS #2 - RAFT Rubric
	DSS #3 - Student Interest Inventory
	DSS #4 - RAFT Choices
	DSS #5 - What Are My Learning Strengths
	DSS #6 - Interest Inventory
	DPS 109 Withdraw from NSSED
	Minutes 8-17-15 (Open Session)
	Monthly Financials - September 2015 August 2015
	Accounts Payable 8-18 to 9-21
	Summary Accounts Payables August18th to September 21st 2015
	SummaryAccountsPayableForAugust18thtoSeptember21st2015
	1
	Check
	132754
	132755
	132756
	132757
	132758
	132759
	132760
	132761
	132762
	132763
	132764
	132765
	132766
	132767
	132768
	132769
	132770
	132771
	132772
	132773
	132774
	132775
	132776
	132777
	132778
	132779
	132780
	132781
	132782
	132783
	132784
	132785
	132786
	132787
	132788
	132789
	132790
	132791
	132792
	132793
	132794
	132795
	132796
	132797
	132798
	132799
	132800
	132801
	132802
	132803
	132804
	132805
	132806
	132807
	132808
	132809
	132810
	132811
	132812
	132813
	132814
	132815
	132816
	132817
	132818
	132819
	132820
	132821
	132822
	132823
	132824
	132825
	132826
	132827
	132828
	132829
	132830
	132831
	132832
	132833
	132834
	132835
	132836
	132837
	132838
	132839
	132840
	132841
	132842
	132843
	132844
	132845
	132846
	132847
	132848
	132849
	132850
	132851
	132852
	132853
	132854
	132855
	132856
	132857
	132858
	132859
	132860
	132861
	132862
	132863
	132864
	132865
	132866
	132867
	132868
	132869
	132870
	132871
	132872
	132873

	Direct Deposit
	1851
	1852




	Application for Recognition of Schools 2015-2016
	Application for Recognition of Schools 1.pdf
	Application for Recognition of Schools 2

	2014-2015 Salaries and Benefits Sheet1
	Strategic Plan Draft
	Community Forum Proposals
	Website Redesign Initiative
	Visual Identity Initiative



